BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

MINUTES
March 28, 2011
Council Chamber, 8 th Floor
CONVENE: 9:04 a.m.
PRESENT:

Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla, Chair
Councilmember G. Riki Hokama, Vice-Chair
Council member Gladys C. Baisa, Member
Councilmember Robert Carroll, Member
Councilmember Elle Cochran, Member
Councilmember Donald G. Couch, Jr., Member
Councilmember Danny A. Mateo, Member
Councilmember Michael P. Victorino, Member
Councilmember Mike White, Member

STAFF:

Scott Kaneshina, Legislative Analyst
Carla Nakata, Legislative Attorney (Item No. 3 I )
Camille Sakamoto, Committee Secretary

ADMIN.:

Sananda K. Baz, Budget Director, Office of the Mayor
Kyle K. Ginoza, Director, Department of Environmental Management (Item Nos. 4
and 5)
Michael

M. Miyamoto, Deputy Director, Department of Environmental
Management (Item No. 29)
Tracy N. Takamine, Chief, Solid Waste Division, Department of Environmental
Management (Item Nos. 29, 4 and 5)
Jo Anne Johnson Winer, Director, Department of Transportation (Item No. 3 1 )
Marc 1. Takamori, Deputy Director, Department of Transportation (Item No. 31)
.Jeffrey A. Murray, Chief, Department of Fire and Public Safety (Item No. 4 and 5)
Lee Mainaga, Fire Services Officer, Department of Fire and Public Services (Item
Nos. 4 and 5)

Danilo F. Agsalog, Director, Department of Finance (Item Nos. 4 and 5)
Patrick T. Matsui, Deputy Director, Department of Parks and Recreation (Item Nos. 4
and 5)

David C. Goode, Director, Department of Public Works (Item Nos. 4 and 5)
David S. Taylor, Director, Department of Water Supply (Item Nos. 4 and 5)
Herbert W. 1. Chang, Engineering Program Manager, Water Resources and
Planning Division, Department of Water Supply (Item Nos. 4 and 5)
Adrianne N. Heely, Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the Corporation
Counsel
Cheryl A. Tipton, Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the Corporation
Counsel (Item No. 3 I )

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 28,2011

Seated in the gallery..

Jeremiah L. Savage, Deputy Director, Department of Finance (Item Nos. 4 and 5)
Michael M. Miyamoto, Deputy Director, Department of Environmental
Management (Item Nos. 4 and 5)

OTHERS:

Andrew Valentine Jr., Chair, Maui County Commission on Persons with
Disabilities (Item No. 31)
Bryan Zoeliner, Member, Board of Directors, Hawaii Centers for Independent
Living (Item No. 31)
Elaine Ota, President, Maui Wheelers; Member, Board of Directors, Hawaii Centers
for Independent Living (Item No. 31)
Lyn McNeff, Chief Executive Officer,Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
Nani. Watanabe
Two (2) additional unidentified attendees

PRESS:

Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
Ilima Loomis, The Maui News

The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
. (gavel).
March 28, 2011 is now in session. The time is 9:05. Good morning, Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hopefully everybody had a restful weekend.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, nape.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time the Chair would like to recognize all of the Members that are here
this morning. Starting from my left, we do have Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Balsa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning and aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Hokama, Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good morning. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And Member and Council Chairman, Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Supporting the Staff...Committee this morning from our Staff, we do have
Scott Kaneshina as well as Camille Sakamoto. From the Administration, we do have from
Corporation Counsel, Adrianne Heely, and our Budget Director, Mr. Sandy Baz. Good morning.
MR. BAZ: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we do have people signed up for public testimony this morning.
For those of you that are providing public testimony, you do have three minutes to provide your
testimony. Chair will allow one minute to conclude. When you come up to the podium, if you
can state your name, the organization that you represent, the Chair and the Committee would
appreciate that. At this time, Members as well as people in the audience, if you could turn off
your cell phone or put it on the silent mode, the Committee would appreciate that. Members, we
have three people signed up for public testimony prior to the meeting. At this time, the first
person to provide public testimony is Reverend Andrew Valentine, Jr.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MR. VALENTINE: Good morning, Council Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning,
MR. VALENTINE: I think I need an office here, I'm here so much. . (laughs). . . Thank you for this
second opportunity to testify about the ParaTransit needs. I think it's very appropriate that the,
the Public Transportation Director Jo Anne Johnson Winer did do a letter to the editor and
mentioned the statistics related to this request to give you an insight into how much the
Paratransit is being used. And it's like with the Titanic, that's just the tip of the iceberg. So
that's...I'm encouraging this, this approval because what this does, it allows persons like myself
to be able to get out of our homes to go to church, to recreation, shopping, medical appointments,
just whatever. Without this we're prisoners. And I also want to encourage you that don't let this
be the end. There is a future in this. We're all getting older and we're all one accident or one
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illness away from being mobility limited. When that happens, we cannot drive even though we
want to, and without public transportation we're stuck at home or in Hale Makua or wherever,
waiting for somebody to bring us something. Help us to be independent, that's I think
collectively is your responsibility to help your citizens to live independent lives in their homes
for as long as feasibly possible, and those that are born with disabilities to help them he able
realize that they can be on their own. Without public transit they're stuck in place. Thank you
for this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Reverend. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again. The next testifier is Bryan Zoellner. Bryan?
MR. ZOELLNER: How's it going? My name is Bryan Zoeliner, and today I am representing
Elaine Ota. I'm a live-in caregiver for her in Kihei--and also the Hawaii Centers for Independent
Living, I'm a board member and representative from Maui. I'm here to testify on the Bill 31 for
ParaTransit. And, you know, today I really just wanted to say how grateful we are that we have
this ParaTransit service, and that, you know, it's...with, without it, you know, we, we would be
stuck at home not doing a whole bunch. You know, Kihei as, as great as it is with the, the
sidewalks, it's still very spread apart and we can't be walking everywhere that we go, so we need
transportation. A few years ago Elaine used to have an accessible van that she was, you know, I
could drive and we could go everywhere but she doesn't have that anymore, and she was very
scared for a while, what's going to happen, am I going to be stuck at home, and is this like the
end of my, you know, public appearance? But, you know, we, we found out about this
ParaTransit service and it really did, you know, bring her back to life. So just want to say, you
know, we use it all the time, every day, and it's imperative to...I honestly think Elaine's health,
to make sure that she's out. So thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this morning? Seeing
none, thank you again. And then the last person signed up for public testimony is Elaine Ota.
MS. OTA: Hi, I'm Elaine Ota. I'm the president for the Wheelers, too, and we, we organize this club
for the disabled, we try to help them to get out of the house and have activities as well as
meetings. And I too am the board of director for HCIL. I'm grateful for this transportation
because just staying home makes me really depressed. I like to go out every day to...either to
help the disabled or for my recreation too, to go to shopping, to go to doctors, and other things.
Bryan has helped me so much to be in the community, and I really would like to thank for the
bus system. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this morning? Seeing
none, thank you again for being here. Members, Ms. Ota was the last person signed up for
public testimony prior to the meeting. Is there anyone out there that want to provide public
testimony at this time? Seeing none coming forward, if there's no objections, the Chair would
like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we have several items on the agenda this morning, and thank you
for being here. The...part of the agenda this morning, you know, I have posted BF-4 and BF-5
to allow the Committee to discuss CIP projects and have . . . put all department directors on call.
Before we get started with our first item of business, is there any specific project that you would
like to discuss this afternoon or this morning so we can alert the directors in the Chamber this
morning? What I have done, Members, the first Department that the Chair would be calling up
and just go right down the list, would be Fire and Public Safety, next is Parks and Recreation,
followed by Environmental Management, and then the last Department would be the Department
of Public Works in that order. Is there any objections to that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I'm not happy with the South Maui police project, so if you
would consider that to be reviewed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, line. Well have Staff call the Police Department and then have them
come over this morning. What I'll do is maybe before we do Environmental Management, you
know, or before we do Parks and Recreation, we'll have them follow Fire and Public Safety. Is
that okay? Okay, good. Members, the first item on our agenda this morning...and by the way,
in your packet or in your binders, there is a, an information of all of the projects that the County
of Maui do have on the books, and it was done by Wendy Taomoto. And, you know, I
encourage Members to look at that, you know, during this deliberation as well as the upcoming
budget deliberation. It, it provide us with a fairly good update on all of the projects that we have
in the County of Maui, and also future projects that are being considered for 2012. So if you
could, you know, kind of review that at a later time.
ITEM NO. 29:

AMENDING FY 2011 BUDGET: SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FUND
(C C. No. H -63)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: But this morning, the first item on the agenda is BF-29 Amending
Fiscal Year 2011 Budget. This is the Solid Waste Management Fund. The Committee met on
this item on March 15 and recommended to defer. Since then, we are in receipt of a
correspondence from the Budget Director, dated March 22 nd , 2011, transmitting a proposed
resolution to authorize a transfer of $205,000 from the Landfill Disposal Program to the
Residential Collection Program, both programs in the Solid Waste Management Fund, to cover
the cost associated with the increased fuel expense. So at this time, the Chair would like to call
up Mr. Baz for opening comments.
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MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We, like you mentioned, we transmitted a proposed resolution for
this transfer. After discussion with the Department we were able to utilize and they deferred
some projects and...or items, costs in the Solid Waste...excuse me, in the Landfill Program, and
transferred it to the Refuse Collection Program, and so this resolution is a draft that we
transmitted to Council for your review and discussion. Mr. Chair, the Department will be also
asking for an additional 45,000, and they can explain that, so a total transfer of 250,000.
Cf IAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Department, any comments?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Based on the comments provided at the last meeting, we
went ahead and took another deeper look at the, the other program within the Solid Waste
Division. We looked for some things that we could go ahead and delay the, the preventative
maintenance...repair and maintenance of some, some facilities. We looked at what we could do
possibly internally by staff to try and save money there for repairs that would normally be
contracted out, and given the recent billings that we've gotten for some of our repairs of our
refuse equipment, that is why we're asking for the additional amount of...towards the $250,000
amount. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Fast question for the Department, is the...this would be only for
fuel costs that is being asked for, what about the other $45,000?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair? The additional amount, actually the, the whole 250,000 would cover
the operations of the refuse collection system. As we do have four more holidays coming...three
more holidays, I'm sorry, remaining in the year, we're looking at...typically we collect trash on
those days, so that's additional overtime. Were looking at fuel costs are going up. We had
some bills for tire replacements, and we had some equipment repairs that have come up. So if
anything we're looking for the whole amount to be in the operations, overall operations of
landfill.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Which include maintenance?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Members, any questions? I'll go from my left,
Member Carroll?
-

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Question for .. .(clears throat). . . excuse me, for Public Works.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I noticed in this last trash pickup on the holiday, usually they
have...the holiday schedule is the same, no matter when the holiday falls they still pick up the
trash. But in Hana they didn't and I believe Lanai, I'm not too sure, or Molokai, and that
obviously saved money by not having the overtime. Why isn't it done in other places?
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Cl IAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes. In, in this past holiday, the refuse for the Hana and Molokai residents was
changed from Friday normal pickup to...for Hana it was Thursday, Molokai it was Wednesday.
That was changed basically because Highways...in, in those areas we do not pick up the trash
with refuse staff, it's picked up with Highways Division staff, and we, we do a lateral transfer of
funds to account for that. And up until this year, they used to do the pickup on those days on
overtime, but for I guess starting this year, I'm not sure for whatever reasons but they are, they
are changing their schedule when there's a holiday, it falls on a holiday, they're going to give
their staff off, and there's just no pickup for that day. Or we can...we move it in this case to
another day. They can do that because in those areas that's all they do, I mean they pick up trash
for us on one day in Hana which is Friday; other than that, they're working four...the other four
days, that crew is working on highways, they're laborers. In Molokai, they pick up trash on
Thursday/Friday; other than those days, they're working highways. In our case, we always pick
up on holidays whether it be on a weekday. We don't have another day to shift it to. We, we, if
we don't pick up the trash on that holiday we will not make it up because there is no other day to
make it up. Our, our crews are working continuously. They have...each crew has multiple
routes, they have...one day, they're doing one route. The next day, they're doing a different a
route. If they miss a route they have to make it up on overtime or on the weekend, so we don't
have the luxury of moving days, you know, we, we have to pick it up. If we don't pick it up,
then that resident will not get picked up refuse unless we do it on overtime.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: May I have one more question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Is there...would it be more efficient to have enough crews to pick
up the trash four days a week instead of five? Where you would have either more...another
truck or something to make up for that, so you didn't have to do the five days a week, you could
do it in four?
MR. TAKAMINE: I'm not clear on your question, but right now our current crews, right now our
automated crews work four days a week. They work four ten-hour days. Our manual routes,
they, they work five days a week. They're picking up...we have different routes and they're,
they're doing pickups continuously, so I'm, I think I answered your question, I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: You did. The reason I brought it up was because I knew the
automated one was four days a week so I was wondering if could do the same thing for the other
pickup. Just to think about.
MR. TAKAMINE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. Thank you for being here this
morning. Couple of questions, the first one I have is in regard to the request for more money due
to increased costs in gas. That's kind of a no-brainer because every one of us is shuddering at
the thought of going near a gas station these days. I've seen it, you know, for what I buy almost
a dollar, you know, in a very short period of time, and we don't know where that's going to end.
My question is more for the Budget Director. This kind of terrifies me because this is only one
department talking about trash pickup. This must be happening with all of our vehicles. Are we
going to run into trouble in every, every department?
MR. BAZ: Ms. Baisa, the current budgets are sufficient for costs of fuel. This Division and this
program specifically have a reduced budget as well as the increased costs associated with the
automated vehicles in the Makawao District. So those, those vehicles have a very high fuel
usage, and so it's not just a matter of the cost increasing but the, the actual usage increasing
significantly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. So you're figuring we're going to squeak by towards the end of
the year with the money we have in budgets except in this case?
MR. BAZ: For the...yes, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, okay. 'Cause, you know, this could be...lead to many of these
requests as everybody runs out of gas money like all of us are running out of gas money. The
other thing was I was concerned when I heard Mr. Miyamoto mention deferred maintenance.
You know, I'm always afraid of that when you're talking with mechanical equipment, and if
that's how we're going to save money, I'm scared because in the end it's going to cost us more
money. You know, recently there's been a rash of missed pickups and excuses that were given is
because the trucks are down or staff. And is that trucks being not available to pick up the trash is
it because we're deferring maintenance? I mean I just don't want us to go there, I don't want us
to hurt our equipment 'cause this is really expensive stuff. Any, any response?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, the recent...well, we're not, number one, we're not deferring maintenance yet.
MR. MIYAMOTO: . .(inaudible). .
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MR. TAKAMINE: We...
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: I got the yet.
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MR. TAKAMINE: We...the main causes of the recent missed trash pickups, and normally it's because
of staff shortage. We don't have a big pool of extra drivers, especially automated drivers.
Automated drivers are very hard to come by. We might have one, one driver that's on standby.
But when somebody's out sick we try to make it up either by doing another route on a driver
that's finished his route or we do it the next following day. Wednesdays on the automated routes
are no pickups for any automated routes. They pick up on Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, Friday.
so any shortages we make it up on Wednesday or we make it up on Saturday. That's the big
reason why we, we miss routes, it's because we don't have the necessary staff, the correct staff to
do the correct job. In terms of mechanical problems, once in a while we get a condition where
for some reason our, our main truck and our spare truck is down. When that's down, then we
might miss a route due to mechanical problems.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So what happens if you are routinely scheduled for a pickup on Monday
and they miss and they come on Tuesday, how does that get done? Is that OT?
MR. TAKAMINE: It...
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: 'Cause that's been done where I live.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah. If they, if they're...if the route is missed on Monday, unless we can get
somebody to work that day after they do their normal route, which if they do is OT, we will also
make...they make it up the next day. But when we make it up the next day either somebody is
doing a double route that day, and they do get overtime. Anytime they do a route after their
normal route, that's considered working another full workday and they do get overtime.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wow, that gets expensive.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, it does.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: I just want to clarify, the deferred maintenance that they're discussing is because they're
transferring from the Landfill Program into the Refuse Collection Program. They have not
deferred maintenance in the Refuse Collection Program as of yet, that's what he meant by yet.
The deferred maintenance that we're talking about is because we're reducing the appropriation
for the Landfill section and moving that to Refuse Collection.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I don't want to get into the semantics but somewhere something's
not getting done in order to save money to, to take care of this.
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, Mr. Baz, I just want to say, you know, I commend you for
looking to the other areas in the Waste Management area...not Waste Management but the
Landfill area in moving your monies to accommodate this request: this morning. Member
Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. And thank you. Department.
Everyone pretty much touched on a lot, but my question is it says that the, the cost for fuel
consumption with these new automated trucks are actually doubled in what you folks projected
them to be. And hearing maintenance costs and, and overtime with, you know, you know,
breakdowns, whatever, is it still feasible to have these? I mean, you know, it sounds like versus
the manual pickups versus automated, is this weighing out? Is the numbers weighing out for you
folks -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --us?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah. Actually what, what the problem we have is we, we recently automated
Upcountry, all of Upcountry, so our Makawao crews were previously all manual trucks and we
upgraded that--and I think it was a year and a half ago--to automated. What we're finding out is
that the automated trucks are probably...the engine that we spec'd out is probably undersized.
Because they're going uphill and hauling the amount of weight they're hauling, we're finding
out that the, the fuel consumption is a lot higher than we projected. From that learning
experience, in, in all likelihood, if we do buy new trucks for Upcountry, we're going to spec out
a different size engine to get a better fuel consumption and better truck to work in that area. But
if you know Upcountry, it's all uphill. When they come down to landfill, go back up, it's all
uphill. All their pickups are uphill in slope, so that's what we're finding out when we're saying
our, our fuel consumption has doubled, it's because we didn't anticipate the amount of fuel that
these trucks are using now. But in terms of automation, that's still the way to go, we just have to
be more cognizant on what we're spec'ing out and using in different areas. For example, when
we do Wailuku Heights we use a low-profile truck so it doesn't overturn. So we have to look
at...you know, there's all different type of trucks out there, so it's just how we spec them out.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. And is there any...are you folks going to be
expanding services? Does this...the conversion from the Landfill money over to the Residential
Collection, is this strictly just for the maintenance portion, not so much expanding the routes at
this point?
- 10-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 28,2011

MR. TAKAMINE: No, the, the, the conversion that we're...I mean the transfer that we're talking
about--is that what we're talking about?--is just to cover our...what we -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Operations.
MR. TAKAMINE: --need to maintain operations between now and the rest of the year. We're not
expanding any services. It's just to do maintenance, pay for salaries, and pay for overtime.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I guess, Department, are you...or are the, the pickup guys
still on the uku pau system?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, they are.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So are they finishing their jobs in their ten...you say there are four
ten-hour days for the automated and five eight-hour days, are they finishing them inside the, that
time?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, they do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So do they then do...like you mentioned a little bit about
overtime, doing other routes in the same day, are they able to do two routes essentially in the
same day if they, if they hustle?
MR. TAKAMINE: Some of them do. Some of our automated routes are so...anyway, the maximum we
can do are 1,000 accounts per automated route by union policy, and some of them are reaching
the 1,000 limit. In those routes, they actually work almost the entire ten-hour days, they have to
do maybe two runs to the landfill, so they cannot do extra routes. But there's some, some routes
that the driver gets done earlier. If he can get done earlier, then he does a second route. Once he
does a second route...it doesn't matter what time it is. Say he does his first route in four hours.
If he works a second route, that's considered working a second day, so he, he gets overtime no
matter what time he starts.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But you usually try to do that to fill in on the days that somebody's
sick?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes. If, if somebody is sick and we miss a route, we ask for volunteers to work
overtime or our supervisors get on that truck, which they normally should not be doing, because
it's against union regulations because they're HGEA workers. But they get on that truck and
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they're picking up trash. I got my, my senior supervisor, he's on the back of a truck picking up
trash when we don't have routes, and that's the only way we make 'em up sometimes to.. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On the manual routes?
MR. TAKAMINE: On the manual routes. The automated ones, like I said, is a little bit different
because you have to be CDI, certified, you have to have the training. We can't just put any CDL
driver on these trucks. They're, they're too big and too dangerous. So when we do have a
shortage of automated drivers and we don't have any backup drivers, then, then...and again if
our supervisors can't do it, then we miss the route.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I guess what I'm, what I'm leading to is you have a bunch of
drivers...a bunch...some, some drivers on manual routes. Can they be trained to do automated
routes too so that if they get their, their stuff done in the four hours that they're scheduled to do
it, then they can go out and do an automated route?
MR. TAKAMINE: I would say they could if...they'd have to be certified, they'd have to be trained to
drive the automated trucks.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Would that save us a little hit of either less missed days or save us on
overtime costs?
MR. TAKAMINE: It possibly could.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Have you guys looked into that?
MR. TAKAMINE: You know, I, I, I'm not sure how many of our manual truck drivers are qualified to
drive the automated trucks. We cannot force them to do that. We encourage them to be
cross-trained, but some of our drivers, they don't want to drive the automated trucks. In fact
that's...when...some, sometimes when we have vacancies, we can't get in-house drivers because
they don't want to do that route. The automated trucks are very, very, I guess, tough on the
body. I, I, I drove with a driver one time for eight hours and those trucks are, are very, very hard
on the body. It's a stop and go, stop and go, and you're, you're bouncing, the noise level, you
know, you have to have one arm on the control for the...you're looking in the rear of the truck,
you're looking in forward of the truck, you're stopping, going, stopping, going. And some, some
of these drivers, they don't want that type of work environments. They don't want to he a driver
automated truck.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good question though. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Department. what would you do with this request if there was no money?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No supplemental Carryover, what would you do?
MR. TAKAMINE: If_ if you're saying if we couldn't get it from the landfill?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If there was no money.
MR. TAKAMINE: If there was no money and we would be running out of money we project by middle
of June, sometime in, in June, middle or beginning of June, based on our current spending trend.
We would either not he able to pay our bills or something would go. We'd be, we would start
holding back funds and, you know, that's not the way to do it, in order to maintain service, but
we would run out of funds. This, this, this Refuse section if you look at their budget.
62 percent...63 percent of their budget, just as, it goes to salaries, 10 percent goes to fuel,
7 percent overtime, and 8 percent maintenance. So when you just total those, those basics up, it
accounts for 87 percent of their budget. So they don't have any...I don't want to say fluff or
leeway, but there's nothing in there that they can, they can have excess to cover shortages. If we
miss one of these estimates and when we do our budget it's, you know, it's an educated guess
based on current trends and past practice. If we get a major problem like we have right now.
actually I just got a...my, my supervisor came up to me this morning, saying we gotta repair one
automated truck, it's $21,000, you know, that's not part of our estimate. We did not foresee a
$21,000 repair. The Lanai truck that when we brought last year to repair, it cost us $65,000 to
repair that truck, and, and as you recall, you know, we were down for three months on that. So
these are un-projected things that this section, if we don't know what's coming up and we get hit
by one of these, it just basically wipes out our budget. There's, there's nothing that we can, we,
we have, there's no capital funds, there's no large maintenance funds unless we pad it, you
know, and we try not to pad it. We do the best we can in estimating what we're going to do for
the year, and when we get hit by these unexpected expenses it, it throws us off.
VICE-CHAIR IIOKAMA: Uh-huh. Well...
MR. TAKAMINE: Oh, the other, the other thing too is on, on overtime, you know, if we...one of the
things we could possibly do if we don't get the money and, and, you know, people are not going
to want that, but it's we cut out picking up trash on the holidays. For every holiday we pick up
trash, it costs us 12 to $15,000 in overtime. City and County of Honolulu they don't pick up
trash on holidays. For some reason with the union it's agreed that they're off. We pick up trash
on every holiday, rain or shine, so we, we budget for 15 holidays. Just that alone is $170,000 of
his overtime, his overtime is 220,000 a year, 170,000 just what we call base overtime, we're,
we're going to pay it no matter what. So he has again the, the additional overtime is for missed
routes and all that, and we, we anticipate another 44,000 of missed routes between end, now and
the end of the year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You just informed the Committee that Honolulu has a special component in
the collective bargaining agreement that allows them not to pick up during holidays.
-13-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 28,2011

MR. TAKAMINE: That's, that's what I understand, they do not pick up on, on holidays.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does that have anything, if, if you are aware regarding their third party
vendor at the landfill?
,

MR. TAKAMINE: That I'm not sure of. I, I don't, I don't see how it, that would affect it, but I can't be
sure on that. 'Cause everything goes to H-Power actually, all their trash goes to H-Power.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Not to their landfill that they're having issues with?
MR. TAKAMINE: I think some of it goes to the landfill. I don't know how they, they determine what
goes to landfill, but the majority of their, their trash goes to H-Power.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thanks for sharing that. So I'm sure then you would have no
problem at all with a amendment proviso that says exactly what you're asking for shall be used
for exactly what you telling us this morning then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. Most of the questions I had have been asked
already. The only one, the only question, you mentioned that on the automated they work four
days, right. Wednesdays they're off?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. What would be the, the problem and again I guess it's a
problem, but I mean really in my mind a method of correcting these holidays, if we made
pickups on holidays, Wednesdays instead of Fridays or Thursday. In other words, you would
utilize that Wednesday off instead and go with a four day, but that week it would be Wednesday
because the holiday is on Friday or the holiday is on Monday. You know, I guess routing would
be a little challenge, you know, scheduling and maybe the public's awareness, but again, you
know, on Oahu they don't pick up on holidays. So public's aware of that, they make necessary
corrections, they don't bring out their can on that holiday and all that other stuff. I have family
and friends that have adjusted to that. Again, have you made any thoughts in that respect, you
know, how we could make that change and cut down the overtime on holidays? I mean I'm not
saying don't pick up trash, but maybe somehow...how many, you got what, 13 holidays a year?
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MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, 15, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifteen, so that's like one a month, in some months two, right? So
would that be a possibility? And would you...have you looked into that and would you think,
consider that? That's...
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah. Number one, we didn't look into it. If we do pickup any other day other than
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday... Monday, Tuesday -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thursday, Friday.
MR. TAKAMINE: --Thursday, Friday, whether we pick it up on Wednesday or, or other than the
holiday we're still on overtime, because they're, they're working on overtime. And I think it
would be very, it would be confusing to try to notify the public every time a holiday occurs on
what day their pickups going to be. It, it...the only way we can communicate that is through
public news release and even when we do that we don't get everybody. So for example, when
we did this Hana and Molokai and we only have like 6...4 to 600 accounts in each place, we get
inundated with calls, because they do not get notified and they're calling us and, and we...you
know, for a couple of days we're just getting complaints. I can foresee if we shift to a different,
you know, day to pick up other than a holiday, we, we won't be able to manage that. And, and
yeah, we, we haven't approached the union or anything, since I've been here, on, on whether to
change the holiday pickup or not.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, these are different times and we have to start thinking out of
the box, yeah? I don't think we can continue to do business as usual. The business world is
changing. Government has to change. I mean I think if you sat down with unions and other
people they realize the dynamics that are occurring. We don't have unlimited resources and our
constituents are out there just ranting about all the increases, Mr. Chair, and so we've got to start
looking at these, these items, you know, and working collaboratively with the unions. People
will change if we help them change, you know, and, and I believe that. You know, there is.. ,in
the business world people change all the time because they know that's the change that has to be
made, because it'll cost you more, the consumer, or cost the company more which is us, the
taxpayers.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's an either/or thing. So anyhow I don't want to belabor the
point, and, and I don't want to put you on the spot, Mr. Takamine, but I just, just something to,
you know, maybe you guys, your higher-ups can start considering to look around, you know, to
talk about, yeah?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, we'll look at that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
-15-
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. What, what portion of the Residential Collection
budget comes from the residents' payments? Is it all or is part of it from the General Fund?
MR. TAKAMINE: Our cost of service right now when you look at picking up the refuse for, you know,
for maintenance, fuel, salaries, and when you include the cost to landfill what we pickup, it
should be $40 per month. That would be...pay for all the services. We currently charge $18 a
month, so the difference comes out of the General Fund, or it's made up through commercial.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, so collection, the pickup itself is covered. It's the refuse when you look at it,
the land filling that's not covered.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. So we're basically charging less than half of what it costs
currently -MR. TAKAMINE: That's correct -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --for residential?
MR. TAKAMINE: --if you look at the whole, the whole cycle.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just, just to piggyback off of
Mr. White's question then, in terms of collections. What is the delinquency that we're looking at
in not being able to collect for our users, both residential and business'?
MR. TAKAMINE: Whenever we send out a bill every six months, as you know we send out a bill every
six months, usually after the first month we have about...and, and by the way, we have 25,000
accounts in residents. Usually after the first month after the bill goes out, we have maybe
between 4 to 5,000 delinquent accounts, people don't pay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and 4 to 5,000 amounts to...dollars?
MR. TAKAMINE: Dollar-wise I, I wouldn't...I can figure it. It's 4,000 times say $18, so whatever that
comes out to. Then what we do is we send out a second bill and, and we do some news releases,
and we kind of narrow that down to about 1 to 2,000 delinquent accounts. Now we're trying to
be...in the past, we weren't as strict, we didn't enforce, you know, go out there and start pulling
-16-
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carts. Now we have, you know, now that our staffing, I've got more staff, we can, we can do
more things now. We're, we're tightening up on the delinquent accounts. We're actually going
out and pulling carts. We're giving them, you know, notices. We...our field crews actually tag
their carts and tell them that they're late again, we give them another...we're kind of lenient on
it, but within, now within about a month and a half after the cycle...the bills are out, we start
pulling carts. Once we start pulling carts, people start, you know, realizing that they, they need
to pay. In the end, I think we average total delinquent is about 4 to 500 that we do not get
payments on, and we will close the account and we'll pull the carts.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And, Mr. Baz, can you tell us what the Carryover
projection is for this Department? Whether there is one?
MR. BAZ: For, for Fiscal Year '11?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well...
MR. BAZ: We...for the Fiscal Year "12 Budget we did not anticipate any Carryover/Savings for this
Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Oh, okay. I'll, I'll wait until we actually get into
budget. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Department or Mr. Baz at
this time? Seeing none, the Chair would like to make his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The Chair's recommendation is to adopt a proposed resolution as
entitled, Authorizing the Transfer of Unencumbered Appropriation Balance within the
Department of Environmental Management Fiscal Year 2011 Budget, and filing of County
Communication No. 11-63.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved by Member Hokama, second by Member Victorino. Any
discussion? Members, the Chair would like to make an amendment, and the amendment would
be increasing the funding from $205,000 to $250,000 from the Landfill Disposal program. And
the...let's take that amendment first.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Baisa, second by Member Couch. Any discussion
on that matter? All in favor of the motion to amend, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried, nine ayes, zero noes.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Balsa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The second amendment in regards to this particular resolution is that on
the...one, two...third whereas, the last sentence where it starts, increased fuel costs due to the
conversion of refuse trucks from manual to automated. The Chair would like to include the word
"maintenance". So that last part would read, "increase the fuel costs due to the conversion of
refuse trucks from manual to automated and maintenance". That's the amendment on the second
one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Baisa. Any
discussion, Members? All in favor of the amendment, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried, nine ayes, zero noes.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Going back to the main motion as amended. Members, all in...any more
discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair? Chair? Chair?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you going to proviso this appropriation?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: State your case.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Their whole case is they want money for their fuel bill, so I expect them to
use this money to pay their fuel bill.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We can set a proviso on that for fuel costs as well as maintenance
costs. Okay? Ms. Neely?
MS. HEELY: Mahalo, Chair. .. (clears throat). . . Excuse me. I believe a transfer of monies within
the Department may be done by resolution, so it's not necessary to amend the ordinance, but its
up to the body if you would like to put a proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On this resolution?
MS. HEELY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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MS. HEELY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is that a substantive change? No?
MS. HEELY: To the reso or the ordinance?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: To the reso to include that so called language that...
MS. HEELY: No, I think you, you can include it within the reso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, whichever vehicle you wish to use, I, I will be happy with.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Members, if there's no objections, the Chair would like to have
Staff make, make those changes, nonsubstantive changes in this reso to include language as so
noted in regards to the use of the funds for fuel and maintenance. And the other, the other one is
to correct the amount in the different areas of this resolution from 205,000 to $250,000, if there's
no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANII IA: Thank you. So Chair will now take the vote on the amended...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, before you call for the vote, once again I'd like to ask our
Budget Director to confirm that there is no Carryovers for this particular Department projected.
Mr. Baz?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: For the Residential Collection program there is no projected Carryover/Savings.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: In that category. In the Department altogether?
MR. BAZ: In the Department, the Wastewater Fund has significant Carryover/Savings.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: What is significant?
MR. BAZ: If you...I can pull that information out and get that to you.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, unless you have a new recertification letter from the Mayor, all
that's available for us to take action this morning is $205,000. There's no $250,000 for this
Committee to take action on. All we have is a letter from the Mayor saying he's verifying 205
for consideration, so I don't know how we can move forward another number unless there's a
new certification letter.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz or Corporation Counsel?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chairman and Mr. Hokama, the transmittal from myself to the Budget Committee is for
a transfer of 205,000 from the Residential...excuse me, from the Landfill Collection...the
Landfill program into the Residential Collection program. The Department has, and, and the
Budget Office has confirmed that 250,000 is available to transfer from the Landfill Collection to
the Refuse Collection program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what is the right number, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At, at this moment the $205,000 was requested earlier, based on the comments
from the Department. An additional 45,000 is being requested to that number, so the number is
$250,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chairman, I'm ready to vote. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. All in favor of the motion...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I just had a quick comment, question for Department. We're taking
this money from the Landfill Disposal program. What's being cut there with this amount of
money? What services or what's being taken out of that program?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department? Ms. Cochran, let, let me add some comments to that.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The last meeting that we had several weeks ago, the Chair of this Committee
had requested the Department to look into the total operations at the landfill, to utilize whatever
monies that they had in the different programs that is available to the Department to operate on,
and, and they did just that. And the intent of the, the Chairman is to ensure that if there are
monies within the program itself, that we take a look at that prior to making any budget
amendment. So they did that, find...rather than, you know, adding new monies, we
utilized...we, we are utilizing existing numbers or dollars within the Department. So it's an
internal movement.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CI IAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Department, if you can?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes. We looked at our operations fund...operations funding for Landfill, and
Landfill has a bigger budget than Refuse Collection. You know, Landfill's budget is six million
plus million dollars, and they have more areas that we can utilize and we can...I don't want to
say cut back on, but we, we have reduced the amount of spending, say for example, cover
material. Over the past year our staff has been using tarps at the outer landfills, we've been
utilizing mulch instead of soil, so we reduced the amount of cover material costs that we've
projected to use. We've reduced...there's less maintenance that we've projected that hasn't
come about as of yet, so what we're saying is, you know, we have, I guess I'll call it, a margin of
safety at the landfill that is bigger than Refuse Collection. We're being basically...because
we're not getting from supplemental budget, we're being told, you know, look in-house. We're
going to take this money from Landfill, and we're reducing their margin of safety now, so it's
not necessarily saying that we're going to cut anything, but if there's something that comes up
between now and the end of the year in the landfill, for example, we may or may not be able to
fund it. In the landfill operations, we have 28 pieces of heavy construction equipment, and the
majority of that equipment from dozers to compactors to, to roll-off, roll-on, we're operating it
every day, every day we're open, you know, eight to ten hours a day. In Refuse Collection,
28 vehicles, 28 refuse trucks. If something goes down on, on a dozer and we gotta replace an
engine or something, it's going to cut that margin of safety down, so we feel comfortable that we
can, we can do it between now and the end of the year. But because we're doing it now it
doesn't mean that halfway through between now and the end of the year, if something major
comes up and we have to replace something, it'll, it'll...and hopefully we'll have that amount of
funds that we need. But again it reduces how much we have available in case of emergencies or
unprojected expenses. So we're going to try and, and still do what we need to do at the landfill
to be in compliance. It just reduces our. again, the margin of safety that we have in terms of
having to cover unexpected cost.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Takamine. One quick question?
MR. TAKAMINE: Sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You talked about the, the covering of the landfill, not using soil.
Has glass been looked into?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, actually Maui Disposal has an excess amount of glass from the, their program
that is very costly for them to ship off. We have approached Department of Health as alternative
daily cover; however, they have told us that they will not accept it because of the fact that using
glass as an alternative daily cover is not recycling. They have to recycle that glass and be
utilized either in road pavement or sent back to be turned into glass again. So we're going to try
and approach them again, because Maui Disposal has come to us again. Due to the cost in
shipping, it's costing them very...it's very costly to get it off island. We're more than willing to
use it as cover material, in fact we think it would be great, but Department of Health is. is who
we need to go through to get our permit modified. So we are going to be looking at that again
within the next few months.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Great. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're good.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We're good.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. All in favor of the motion please say aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes? Seeing none, motion carried, nine ayes, zero noes.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of revised resolution, and FILING of
communication.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Members. Thank you, Department, for being here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Short recess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The Chair is going to call for a ten-minute recess--I know the next one
is going to be very lengthy--so that, you know, we, we can also take advantage of what's being
done on the 7 th floor. So we'll reconvene at ten after 10:00. So this meeting is in recess.
... Gavel).. .
RECESS:

10:00 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:17 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel). . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Thank you, Members, for that short break. I hope some of you went downstairs to
support the fundraising efforts of the eighth-floor ladies as well as the seventh-floor ladies,
so...or I should say personnel because had men and women.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I was going say, Chair, don't leave the guys out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Baking goods and, and making hot stuff, so 1, I hope you had an opportunity
to buy something for the Food Bank. Yeah, all of the proceeds will go to the Food Bank. Okay.
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Thank you. Members, before I go into the next item, for our discussion on the CIP, will anyone
be making a request for the Water Department to be here? No?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll save them for the good time.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For little while, we let them off the hook.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll, we'll save 'em budget time then.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I can wait to have Police come up later when they have the appropriate
consultants to be able to explain my concerns on that project, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more concerns regarding reviewing the various departments?
Okay, seeing none.

ITEM NO. 31:

DEPARTMENT OF
AMENDING FY 2011 BUDGET:
TRANSPORTATION (GRANTS AND DISBURSEMENTS FOR
PARATRANSIT SERVICES - HIGHWAY FUND) (c.c. No. 11-67)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next item on the agenda is BF-31, Amending Fiscal Year 2011 Budget:
Department of Transportation (Grants and Disbursements for ParaTransit Services - Highway
Fund). After our March 15 th Committee meeting, we are in receipt of further correspondence
from the Budget Director, dated March 21, 2011, transmitting a revised proposed bill Amending
the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget by establishing programs within the Department of Transportation,
deleting the appropriation for grants and disbursements for ParaTransit Services, and increasing
the appropriation for the Public Transit Program Highway Fund by $790,000. A Certification of
Additional revenues dated March 21, 2011, for $415,000 is included in the transmittal. The
Chair had indicated at the last meeting that the possibility of going into an executive session if
the Members so choose, but at this time, I would like to call on our Corporation Counsel
Adrianne Heely.
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MS. HEELY: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman, and good morning, Committee Members. I understand you did
meet on March 15 th and discussed...there was some discussion about the legal challenges in
regards to the ParaTransit solicitation. So I will give you, as much as I can, information in open
session. I do have a handout that I, I passed out to you folks. This is a copy of the DCCA's or
the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs Hearings Officer's findings of fact and
conclusions of law and decision. It is at a public record so it's appropriate that we discuss this in
open session if the Committee would like.
As some of you may know, there was a legal challenge to the original solicitation and award of
the contract of the ParaTransit services. To give the Committee a brief background, on August
2010...August 10, 2010, the County issued a Request for Proposal for Maui Bus ADA
ParaTransit services. Two proposals were submitted, one by Roberts Hawaii and one by Maui
Economic Opportunity. MEO scored higher than Roberts. Roberts then filed a protest with the
County of Maui which was denied by the Finance Director of...Director of Finance. Reasoning
is stated on Page 3 of the DCCA Hearings Officer's decision, stating briefly that it basically, the
solicitation was a grant and therefore exempt from the Procurement Code. Roberts then filed in
Circuit Court, Second Circuit, a complaint for a declaratory relief and for a temporary restraining
order prohibiting the County of Maui from awarding the contract to MEO. The Circuit Court
denied the motion without prejudice but also ordered that Roberts file an appeal with the DCCA,
hence the Hearings Officer's decision before you. On August...on October 26 th , Roberts filed its
appeal with the DCCA, and the gist of the appeal was whether or not the ParaTransit services
solicitation was a grant exempt from the Procurement Code or not. At the end of the day, the
Hearings Officer stated that the solicitation was a procurement rather than a grant. If it had been
a proper grant as defined by the Maui County Code Section 3.360.010 [sic], it would have been
exempt from Hawaii's Procurement Code. DCCA's ruling was based on the definitions of grant
and recipient in our Code, and in short, grant means an appropriation or allocation to a recipient
for a specified purpose. Recipient means a person, association, or corporation. The ParaTransit
budget item was for an RFP and did not specifically name a person, association, or a corporation;
thus, DCCA held it was for a procurement. So given the Hearings Officer's ruling, our Office
worked with the Department of Transportation and Budget to propose the amended language in
front of you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. HEELY: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Heely, if we stray please let us know, okay?
MS. HEELY: I will. Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Before I ask any questions, I wanna call on Director Johnson to
provide us with some comments in regards to this request.
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MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yes. The, the issue that was just described by Corporation Counsel, I'm
coming in of course on the tail end of that, so they have much more knowledge and Ms. Cheryl
Tipton is also here to address the issue if you do have questions. After visiting with Corporation
Counsel though, I did concur that cancellation of the solicitation was the only equitable way that
we could deal with it at this time, given the late period of time and also other issues that had
arisen during the course of that challenge. With regard to the actual budget amendment that I'm
making, Member Carroll raised a very...you know, well, to me it was a very good point and so
we did, as you'll note, acknowledge only $415,000, because that would have been actually more
fitting with the language of rounding so that's what we did and resubmitting that. And I did
request...because the 2012 Budget is so dramatically different in appearance than actually this
ordinance before you, for simplicity's sake and because we had both commuter and we had
ParaTransit, I asked specifically, to eliminate any confusion or any difficulties on anyone's part,
that we just simply put the money into the current contract. Because that, as you know, will in
2012 change depending on where the Council wants to lead our Department with that particular
request in separating the two contracts, and my assumption is that you'll still want to continue to
separate both the ParaTransit from the main contract which would be for the direct route as well
as commuter. So are there any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I call on the Members, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I did want to clarify in our correspondence dated March 21 st , in the
proposed ordinance Section 2, in an effort to get this to Council before posting, we needed to
make some amendments into that Section 2 part of the ordinance. And it should read Ordinance
No. 3751, as amended, "Fiscal Year 2011 Budget" is hereby amended as it pertains to
Section 3.B.16, Department of Transportation, clarifying program language and by increasing
the public transit program appropriation in the amount of $415,000 and transferring 375,000
from the ParaTransit program to Public Transit program to read as follows.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. At this time I'd like to call on Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And I don't know if this something that
can be discussed in open session, but I understand the chronology of the events and I understand
that eventually this matter of a grant and a contract became the pivotal issue. But what I don't
understand is when Roberts initially filed a protest against MEO receiving the bid or the award,
what was the premise that they appealed on?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Heely?
NOTE: Short pause.
MS. HEELY: I believe the original premise, I, I...Roberts appealed to the Finance Director seeking that
this solicitation should be a procurement, but I...if...and subject to the Procurement Code. But
Cheryl Tipton, the litigator assigned to the case is coming down here, so she may correct if I'm
wrong, but I'm just reviewing the Hearings Officer's decision --27-
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What...
MS. HEELY: --Paragraph 6.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand that became an issue later, but in the initial protest, what
was the reason why they said that MEO shouldn't have received the award? Then later on when
they...there was an appeal, I understand that this whole contract and the procurement thing.
`cause it was handled as a procurement, there was a bid, there was a bid process initially that
MEO won, so what happened?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Please identify yourself.
MS. TIPTON: I'm Cheryl Tipton, Deputy Director, and I was representing the County in these bid
protests. The original protest, besides the issue of whether it was a grant or a procurement,
involved irregularities in the procurement process itself, including the fact that one of the three
raters considered comments that weren't in the proposals, they were considered hearsay
comments. And, and that particular grader took points off of one of the bidders because of that
comment. It was...it, it went to Roberts' detriment. They...there were questions about the
qualifications of the three reviewers of the proposals. There was also an issue of whether or not
there was adequate money for the contract, the total contract. So those were the, the issues that
they were raising that would have been violations of the Procurement Code.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I don't know how far we can go with this, but I'd like to know
who those raters were. And what, what is this thing about not having enough money in the
contract? Didn't the County have $375,000 to pay the, the winning bidder?
MS. TIPTON: Well, I'm, I'm just telling you what they were, the issues they were raising. There
was...in the debriefing conference, they were told by another member of the Corporation
Counsel, who's no longer with us, that there was insufficient funds for the whole project, so they
raised that as an issue. That's not to say that they were going to win on these, but that's what
they were arguing.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So if they won...so they lost the first round?
MS. TIPTON: Roberts lost.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The protest.
MS. TIPTON: The Finance...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The initial protest.
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MS. TIPTON: The initial protest goes to the Director of Finance. The Director of Finance said we, we
believe this is a grant rather than a procurement; therefore, you have no right to protest.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So that's where the grant thing came in. Okay. I get it. That's where
the mistake was made. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Department as well as
Ms. Heely in regards to what was presented by Corporation Counsel? Thank you. If not, in
regards to the budget item, we'll start with, I'll start with Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And it goes to Director. My only concern, in
looking at the proposal, is what I just asked you a little bit ago over the rail, my concern that both
the ParaTrans and the Public Trans funds are, are being put together. And my concern is one of
accountability of the funds, but you, you indicated that it is only for this amendment purpose,
because your own budget in 2012 separates it out again. Is that correct?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Could you expand on why, why we're, we're intermingling these
funds?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: And the reason that I thought because of some of the issues raised about
commuter which is part of the regular contract as well as ParaTransit. Because we have one
vendor currently that is under contract to provide both of the services, for expediency's sake, so I
don't have to worry about do I have to take this pot of money and move it over, I just felt it
would be simpler. Because I'm unclear as to what I may need from commuter if the numbers go
higher, if they go lower. I didn't want to have to explain, you know, that at some point in time. I
think it'll be fine between now and the end of the year, but I wanted to have an opportunity to
just at least make it easier, and you have the explanation for the commuter and the ParaTransit.
And with the 2012 Budget coming up, my anticipation is that you're going to want to continue to
have us do the Request for Proposal just as we did in the last year. That's why it's been
separated in the 2012 Budget. But that was my request for simplicity's sake and it was
something that I felt was cleaner given the current circumstance and given, you know, the
situation as described to you by Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I have two questions, one is how did...of course
you weren't there, but it strikes me that we're having to put in twice the amount of money that
we, we anticipated with the budget. Can you explain to us what's transpired?
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MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yeah. I, if you look...in the last time, even though the number of the
425,000 is not correct, there were charts and graphs attached to the passenger counts, and if you
look in the, you know, in those documents you'll see in...I believe it was the...let's see, let me
go to the right sheet, January of '10, for example, we had Maui Bus ADA ParaTransit passenger
counts that were at 1,446. Then if you look at December of that same year, we reached a high of
4,210 ADA ParaTransit passenger counts. So what happened I believe was that in anticipation
of, I guess, the services being granted there was a greater awareness, because I know friends of
mine from MEO said, oh well gosh, you know, everybody's telling me to sign up for
ParaTransit, so we had this influx of passengers that really attributed. You know, there could
have been...I don't really believe in my...I guess, looking back at it, I never believed that there
would have been this growth which is substantially greater than could have been anticipated.
I...even as you well know having utilized those services before, I had no idea that it was going to
go to those kinds of numbers, and it's still growing. And I believe that I shared some other
information with you regarding the Department of Education, too, which also adds to those
numbers substantially.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. The other question I have is that looking at the amount that
has been spent in, in the Public Transit, it looks like you're going to have a shortfall in funding
there as well. Are you...what are you projecting to have at the end of the, end of the fiscal year?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Well, what we're looking at is if you...in...now that the 2012 Budget is out,
we have requested an additional two...I think it's two and a half million dollars in that budget
which is substantially greater than what we had in the past. One of the things that we're trying to
do is work on our commuter route. We are addressing that so that we don't have those expenses
continuing to result in, you know, having to send a bus, you know, where we need it which is
what we're doing currently. So I believe even from your facility, I did get a communication
from Lori Sablas from your facility who has been a tremendous help with the commuter
situation. We're trying to work with the Department, our Department as well as work with
commuter riders so we don't have those overages. So we're trying to address it that way, and we
are trying to achieve some efficiencies. But hopefully, you know, and I'm going to say this, the
rates and fees will be up to you to review. I would suggest that if you believe there are shortfalls
for 2012, look at what we've submitted this year and then look at what, you know, we've
submitted in 2012. And I will just share with you that one of the areas...in fact when I did a
presentation before Ms. Cochran's Committee, you'll see the revenues drop a little bit which I
think also contributed slightly to the budget shortfall that we have. But the popularity of the
$2 all-day pass has really surpassed our wildest expectations, so I would just ask you look at that,
and that has impacted some of the sales on the monthly passes. So I know that really doesn't
answer your question but...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, my, I guess my concern is by just using the numbers presented as of
February 28 th , you've spent 75 percent, roughly 75 percent of your annual budget where you
should be at closer to 66 percent. My concern is whether or not a lack of funding which I, I just
did a rough calculation could be between 850 and $900,000. My concern is whether that lack of
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funding at the end of the fiscal year is going to result in a lack of service or a reduction in
service, and I'd just like to...
MS. JOHNSON WINER: No, we, we do not anticipate doing that. What we've given you at this point
in time should carry us through for both ParaTransit as well as the commuter, and the commuter
is where we're going to try to make some internal adjustments so that we can achieve savings in
that regard. So I'm hoping and praying, you know, that it will be fine, but basically the
vendor...because of the way it's on demand service, we're doing our best to work with the
vendor. We always do because we never know what kind of demands we're going to be getting
particularly in the area of ParaTransit, sometimes commuter because of course that's cyclical
based on visitor arrivals, and also with what is happening currently with the gas prices. We're
not sure what those numbers are going to look like, but we are doing our best not to carry
forward any additional overage. But the vendor has in the past...you know, they understand that
there's...could be a little bit of overage, a little bit of shortfall, and we'll have a better idea of
where that goes throughout the budget process. And we certainly...if there are updates to give
you, we will give you that during the budget process. But we will not discontinue service.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. If I can just ask one more question, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Of the $415,000 that you're requesting, what portion of that has already
been spent or committed to?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: In, in...I'm not sure if I understand your question. You mean...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, my, my question is...we have a $375,000 budget for the whole
year.
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: You're asking for 415 because we're going to...we're running out of
money -MS. JOHNSON WINER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --in that...
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Well, there's a lot more money that, you know, we're putting actually into
the budget from 5311 funds, but if everything -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, but.. .
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MS. JOHNSON WINER: --goes as projected, it will all be committed based on the projections that we
have. It will all be utilized. We should have no Carryover Savings then between now -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. So what you're saying then -MS. JOHNSON WINER: --and the end of the year.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --is of the budgeted amount of 375,000, you have not spent any more
money at this point than 375,000 on ParaTransit?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: You know and I'm not, I'm not sure how to answer that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Maybe, maybe the Budget Director could.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe Mr. Baz can help.
MR. BAZ: If, if you reference Director Johnson's transmittal to Council last Budget meeting, there's
some projected shortfall calculations on the right-hand side. This is that legal-size page.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No. I know.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. So...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm, I'm asking whether the money has already been spent -MR. BAZ: So...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --or committed to -MR. BAZ: If you'll look at this...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --since we're almost nine months into the year with a 375,000 budget
and we're asking for a total of 800,000 or roughly.
MR. BAZ: If you'll look...excuse me, Mr. White, if you'll look at this, $168,932 is calculated by the
Department to have owed from Fiscal Year 2010, so those were already provided services. From
2011 is the rest of the shortfall, and those, those...projected shortfall is based on actual services
provided up to this point. Three hundred and seventy five thousand dollars in the budget, none
of that has been spent, because that had a proviso on it which made it so that that money could
only be spent if a contract was executed and originally by September 30 th . As you heard, that
didn't happen, so none of that $375,000 has been, has been actually expended. Maybe... so to
answer your question, it hasn't been expended. Whether or not the provider has incurred those
services and provided those services is a different question.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, then that's my question.
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: To what degree has the provider... how much is he owed just for
Fiscal Year 2011 services after roughly nine months of service?
MR. BAZ: And hopefully the Director can answer that question.
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yeah. And, and what I will do is I will get you that information.
Unfortunately, Diane Yogi who does all of our budgeting and who works with the actual vendor
would be able to answer that question, but I can get that information for you. My, my guess is
that they have far exceeded, you know, because of what we're doing. If you just simply did the
cost analysis, they have continued to provide this service and fund it without compensation.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I understand, but I guess my challenge is when you're coming and
asking for a Budget amendment and you can't tell us how much is owed for services under that
line item year to date on this fiscal year, I'm, I'm a little concerned, you know.
MS. JOHNSON WINER: I can...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fine. You're going to explain?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yeah, okay. If you just look at the budget from last fiscal year and you do
the calculations and I don't have my calculator here, but if you go through the month, we're
almost through the month of March, if you just add up those totals that will give you the total for
ParaTransit that he would be owed or that Roberts would be owed. So you do those totals and
then minus out the $375,000 and then add in the additional monies that we're asking for. So this
is the total amount of the billings that we would have received.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And most of my questions if we go into
executive session is what I'm very interested in. All of these other ones we have already
discussed a time...a few times already so, and I was the one that put that proviso in, so I
understand all why where we're at, why we're at this point right now. But the questions I have
are in...would be needed to be asked in executive session so I'll wait for that opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I'm trying to understand this, Chairman. So we have money in an account
for ParaTransit services, 300-plus or -minus thousand that was available July 1, 2010. And we
currently have a provider giving service to the community that has no contract and is billing the
County for services that at this point in time, the Committee has no knowledge exactly how
much. And we're hearing through this Budget Amendment that for the rest of the fiscal year this
is how the County is going to operate but they need more money. This is better than Las Vegas.
Where's the accountability then, Chairman? So my question is who authorized the current
provider to continue to give service even after we had a DCA [sic] decision that told us how to
fix the situation is what I would like to know, Chairman. Can you share information to the
Committee?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe... Ms. Johnson?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yes. There is an existing contract, which was not cancelled, for Roberts to
provide services which include fixed routes, commuter, and ParaTransit, so there was never a
cancellation of that contract. That contract is still in full force and effect, and so when the
proviso came in that was attached to that, it contained a provision that the monies, the 375,000
could only be released if there was a contract executed separate and apart from the main contract
that was in existence. So Roberts has continued to provide those services under their existing
contract, because we were unable or my predecessor was unable to execute a separate
ParaTransit contract.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And thank you for that, Director. That, that, that gave us some
understanding. So the Committee's understanding is that this so-called contract never gets
terminated, that there are always some provider that is providing service even if the term has
expired is a provision that continues to allow the service to continue?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: The, the contract that Roberts has...and my Deputy can correct me if I'm
wrong, but I believe it has an additional two years to run under the base contract, so it is not
expired. It was a five-year contract -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. JOHNSON WINER: --that was entered into, not an annual.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So this is year four as, as -MS. JOHNSON WINER: This I believe...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you would understand it?
-34-
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MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yes. This, this would be year four, so there should be one, one additional
year to run under that contract.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. And the amount that we are being charged for services
provider, it's all part of the specifics that's in this executed contract you're, you're informing us
about?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yes, the, the existing contract has a provision. What has not been
provided...I believe there was only one point where there was a slight increase because there's
no fuel adjustment charge that is part of that contract. What happens is that I believe only one
time was amended where they got a slight increase, but they have received no other increases
other than the initial contract.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So while we have not touched this specific funding that's in
discussion before the Committee, the vendor has been paid from another source of funds
available for services rendered?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: The 5311 monies which are available for...from Federal. We received that
late. We got a combination of '09 and '10 monies which we were able to pay for the ParaTransit
services out of that. So...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So as far as the vendor is concerned with the County?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: We're in good standing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We're, you know, the accounts payable it's all...we're all current?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: We should be current and, you know, given this budget amendment we
would be able to pay for services for the duration of this fiscal year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Director.
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. For the Department, I guess, as we've been hearing
through a lot of these Budget meetings, fuel costs are going through the roof Does this 415
include fuel costs or is the, the contractor pretty much eating any fuel increases in his base price?
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MS. JOHNSON WINER: They, they do not have any fuel adjustment charge in their contract, so they
are just precisely eating whatever those fuel escalation costs may be, they're having to absorb
that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we won't be seeing another request for increase for fuel in three
months?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Not as a part of this contract.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. JOHNSON WINER: I, I'm sure you'll get requests in other departments.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Director Johnson Winer. I'm
just looking at this e-mail from Ryan Fujii in regards to that 5311 program saying that this is us.
the County, doesn't have the full appropriations yet till June?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yeah. And the one thing and I apologize for not, you know, because I got
this communication from Mr. Fujii and I just thought...oh, based on a question that was asked by
Budget Chair Pontanilla, was there any additional 5311 money for Fiscal Year 'II that we would
be anticipating to receive? And so Mr. Fujii is referring to the 5311 money for this fiscal year,
but in the past, the money has never been received in...usually by the end of the fiscal year. It
usually comes either in the following year, it'll come in Fiscal Year 2012. Possibly it may come.
you know, I'm, I'm hoping, by January of next year. So but we will advise you when that
happens, but there is currently money that we are utilizing from '09 and '10 so we're all right on
that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. And I guess just a comment, Chair, that just
hearing the growing numbers that are occurring, you know, for the ParaTransit use, and I, I think
we definitely need to support that and make sure we can keep the program growing and thriving
to, to, you know, adjust for us baby boomers who are getting older by the day. And who knows,
we may be needing this type of assistance someday. But thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Chair. It's funny to hear the...this lovely
young lady talking about needing a bus, but I'm real close to it so I have a vested interest here. I
find it very amusing that we're shocked that the numbers for ParaTransit went through the roof,
because what we did during the last budget, we downsized the Ala Hou program and took $400
away...$400,000 away from MEO who was doing Ala Hou which is essentially this kind of
-36-
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client. And here we are now looking for $415,000 shortfall to give to the current provider, I find
that kind of interesting. At the same time that the Ala Hou was downsized--to use a nice word-MEO notified their clients that an RFP would be issued for ParaTransit services and assisted
their clients in obtaining and completing County of Maui ParaTransit applications. Of course
they were trying to get ready and to bid on the contract, and of course when they got the bid, they
went out and hired drivers and they had the clients all excited and ready to go. And then of
course the glitch with the protest over the bid, so there really should be no surprise because these
are Ala Hou clients who are now ParaTransit clients. I mean there was no reduction in the
amount of people that need this service. They just went from being Ala Hou clients now to
being ParaTransit clients. So I don't think that should be shocking.
The thing that concerns me is the amount of money that's concerned here. You know, for many
years, it's no secret, I started and ran Transportation program at MEO, and for many, many years
we would get grants from the County or the State or wherever and we were to manage on that
money. At no point were we ever allowed to come back and say, you know, we had more clients
ride this year than we had planned. MEO had to find ways to make up that difference with
fundraising or using MEO's cash or whatever they had to do. So I find it very interesting that
now we kind of have a cost-plus situation with the current provider, so that if they run over
they're entitled to come back and ask for more money. And I think that's a real danger in
budgeting, because that means we don't know what we're going to pay. It also scares me when I
look at the costs, and when you look at the costs per trip that the for-profit provider is getting and
what MEO used to get, the nonprofit provider, I think we're in serious trouble here and we need
to take a really good look at how we're spending our money. Because I don't believe that there
were complaints about the MEO service. It's just that someone made a decision to get rid of Ala
Hou and give it all to ParaTransit and this kicked off this whole problem. So I'm concerned. I
also am concerned about this money that shows on Director Johnson...Johnson Winer's sheet
that says we owe Roberts $168,932 for FY '10. Why are we paying that now? We're almost at
the end of FY '11. Have we paid this? Do we have money to do it? Is it part of the shortfall?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe the Department -MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --or Budget Director can answer that. Go ahead.
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Yeah. I'd, I'd be happy to do that. Because...and, and I totally understand
why you're asking the questions, because my philosophy would be the same thing, that why is
this happening? So when I had a better understanding of the nature of the service, when you
operate a fixed route you do not have a choice, you must provide the ParaTransit service
regardless of, you know, what the situation is unless you actually curtail fixed routes. What
ended up happening and this overage, the 168,000--just as I'm going in and I'm giving you the
projections now for this fiscal year and I can't speak for my predecessor but I'll try--is you never
know where you're going to end up, it could be over, it could be a little bit less, because the
ParaTransit service is an on-demand service. If I knew in advance that I was going to or our
-37-
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drivers were going to pick up "X" number of people at a specific time, that service is a little bit
different than operating a service where the individuals tailor their appointments and everything
to that service. It's just...it's a different animal, because I've utilized, in the past, both services.
So when you're operating and for example, under Ala Hou, you know, everybody knows, when
they utilize Ala Hou which still operates in the Upcountry area, that it operates on certain times.
With the fixed route however, we have to operate ParaTransit during the same number of hours
that the fixed route operates. So if it begins at 5:30 in the morning, we have to operate from 5:30
in the morning until 9:30 or 10 o'clock at night. So because we had no idea what was going to
happen with the Department of Education having additional numbers coming in to us, I could see
that was something that was unanticipated. Because the frequency and the popularity of the
service because as you well pointed out, the education about the services being available was
really now becoming public knowledge, and the popularity of the fees. Because where can you
go when you can purchase for a dollar a day basically, you know, maybe multiple trips, and that
was what was ending up happening.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Now, Ms. Winer, can you comment on the cost-plus contract that
Roberts has? What exactly does that contract say?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: I, I don't have the contract in front of me, but I'd be happy to provide you a
copy. But my basic generic knowledge of it, it basically states that they would be able, like if
there are additional buses, I believe, for the commuter route that are required, that they would be
able, if they do have to by contract provide for that service, they would be able to bill a charge to
the County of Maui for that particular route. That's one area of the contract that we do have.
The other area of the contract, I believe, covers the ParaTransit as an on-demand, so they get
charged so much per service hour that they provide, and that is in the contract, it's a fixed
amount. So they give us, just as Maui Economic Opportunity would give us under their various
programs, the number of service hours that they provide.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Except the difference is that MEO doesn't get reimbursed if they go
over what they do. Last question. I noticed that we are now providing this ParaTransit service
only within the required 1/4 mile radius?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: And that's always been the way that the fixed route was established, it's 3/4 of
a mile. What I'd like to do is because I'm working with Ms. McNeff, we have some gaps in
coverage and we'd like to make some adjustments in MEO's capability to actually pick up in
areas that used to be served by MEO through Ala Hou that are no longer served but are outside
of the County's fixed route 3/4 mile limit. There were some gaps that were revealed so when we
redo that, when our Department works with MEO, we'll address that issue to try to make up
those gaps. And so I'm, I'm very grateful that Ms. McNeff and I are on the same page, that we
need to provide those services. So hopefully those gaps will not occur. And definitely MEO is
critical to Hana, it's critical also to Lanai and Molokai, where we do not offer transportation
services at all. So MEO's absolutely not getting, you know, shunted aside, at least not by this
Administration. I feel that we recognize the importance of MEO, but we also have to find
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out--I'm on a learning curve as well--where the gaps are, where the needs are, and how we can
better serve the public more efficiently and certainly more cost effectively.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think our goals are the same, but I do want us to take a look at the cost
we're paying. And because of this increased demand we're going to need more money and
obviously we have less, so we need to pay close attention to how we're spending our money.
Thank you.
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Just a comment. I think all the Members have
covered everything that I had notes on, I wanted to ask, especially Ms. Baisa over here. But I
would hope that the mistakes made in letting contracts...just for instance, the areas that aren't
being served now, they're outside that, the parameters. This was known and somebody chose to
ignore it, and I would hope that we pay a lot more attention to details like that in the future.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Department as well as the
Director or Ms. Heely at this time? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just one last question. I asked the question and really didn't get an
answer. What happened to the money that we owed Roberts at the end of FY '10? Has it been
paid?
MS. JOHNSON WINER: To my knowledge, you know, when they get compensated, we just pay the
monthly contract, but where, where the overage came from, it's included in that. So I can't
specifically say that that bill was paid, but my assumption is...`cause I...in the Finance
Department it's not like a separate bill. It's just this is what contributed to our going over and
requiring this amount that we're currently coming before you on.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? We do have a Member that want,
wants to go into executive session, so at this time the Chair will entertain a motion to convene an
executive meeting closed to the public, pursuant to Section 92-5(a)(4), Hawaii Revised Statutes,
to consult with legal counsel on questions and issues pertaining to the powers, duties, privileges,
immunities, and liabilities of the County, the Council, and the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Baisa. Any
discussion? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye."
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE; RECESS open meeting and CONVENE executive meeting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we'll prepare the Chambers for executive session.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Recess.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, recess. ... (gavel)..
RECESS:

11:05 a.m.

RECONVENE:

12:12 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel). . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, at this time, is there any questions in open session for the Administration
at this time? If not, Chair would like to make his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair's recommendation is to pass on first reading a revised proposed bill
entitled "A Bill for an Ordinance Amending the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget for the County of Maui
as it Pertains to Estimated Revenues, Department of Transportation - Highway Fund; Total
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Operating Appropriations; and Total Appropriations (Operating and Capital Improvement
Projects)" and the filing of County Communication No. 11-67.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I move...so moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Couch. Members,
at this time, the Chair would like to entertain a motion to amend Section 2--bear with me--by
deleting clarifying program language and by increasing the ParaTransit program appropriation in
the amount of $415,000 and inserting by establishing programs within the Department of
Transportation, deleting the appropriation for grants and disbursements for ParaTransit services,
and increasing the appropriation for the Public Transit program Highway Fund by $790,000. So
let me read the section how it's going to end up at this time, Section 2, Ordinance No. 3751 as
amended, Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended as it pertains to Section 3.B.16
Department of Transportation by establishing programs within the Department of Transportation,
deleting the appropriation for grants and disbursements for ParaTransit services, and increasing
the appropriation for the Public Transit program Highway Fund by $790,000 to read as follows.
That's the amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Been moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Couch. Members,
any discussion? All in favor of the amendment at this please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes? Seeing none, motion is carried, nine ayes, zero noes.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Coming back to the main motion as amended.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I just want to, for the record, to note that I am going to be voting
for this with great reservations. To me it's just that we didn't do a good job of forecasting our
expenditures or whatever was going to happen, now we're stuck paying a lot more money. And
to me a debt is a debt, you know, when you owe, you pay. But I sure hope this doesn't happen
again. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Back to the main motion as
amended. All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed? Seeing none, motion is carried with eight ayes, one no,
Member Hokama. Motion is carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Vice-Chair Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and FILING of
communication.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So at this time, the Chair is going to call for a recess, and I want to thank the
Transportation Department for being here. Thank you.
MS. JOHNSON WINER: Thank you very much, Mr., Budget Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, Members, we'll reconvene this meeting at 1:30. The Budget and
Finance Committee meeting is now in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

12:17 p.m.

RECONVENE:

1:35 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
reconvened.

. (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now

ITEM NO. 4:

FINANCE DIRECTOR'S QUARTERLY AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PROJECT (CIP) REPORTS (C.C. Nos. 10-114, 10-207, 10-261, and 11-66)

ITEM NO. 5:

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) IMPLEMENTATION
REPORTS (C.C. Nos. 10-90, 10-216, 10-268, and 11-79)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we do have two more items, BF-4 and BF-5. For the purpose of
today's meeting, I would like to focus on the CIP section of the Finance Director's Quarterly
Report, dated December 31, 2010. Members, the Chair put these items on the agenda so we can
get updates on projects that were previously funded in prior years and are ongoing, and hopefully
some of the information will help us when we start to take a look at the proposed budgets or
proposed project for Fiscal Year 2012. Keep in mind that you need to refrain from asking
questions related to the Fiscal Year 2012 project at this time. Through, through a transmittal
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from the Managing Director, dated March 23, 2011, you are in receipt of a revised Capital
Improvements, Improvements Projects Implementation Report as of December 31, 2010.
Members, the first department on the agenda this afternoon is the Department of Fire and Public
Safety. We do have with us Chief Murray as well as FSO Lee Mainaga. At this time,
gentlemen, if you could join us up-front. Sandy, you have any opening comments?
MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair. Just moving out of the way so the Fire Department can be here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay, fine. Thank you.
Note: Short pause.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chief Murray, do you have any opening comments before we ask questions on
the various projects that your Department is currently doing right now at this time?
MR. MURRAY: Good afternoon, Chair. Thank you for that. No, I don't have any opening remarks.
I'll just be answering any questions you may have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Well, let, let me start...well, let's have Mr. Mateo start it off
because he has a fire station on Molokai that I was going to ask questions on, but I'll allow our
Council Chair to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. That was so gracious, but I
will...because I live there and I see the project often, I will gladly yield to yourself and the
Members for questions. And I will just follow up at, at a later point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For the Department, one of the questions that I have is the percentage of
completion of the Kaunakakai Fire Station, and what is your target completion date at this time?
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair, for that question. We are at on the new Kaunakakai Fire Station
work completed is 73 percent, and projection date right now is August 1 st of this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Do you have any information, by chance, in regards to the
number of change orders to the project and the cost?
MR. MURRAY: We have three total change orders. Two already been certified to the amount
estimated at $200,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's for two? That's for two?
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MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then the third one is?
MR. MURRAY: Pending.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Pending?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. What does it involve?
MR. MURRAY: Okay. I'll have Chief Mainaga comment on that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chief.
MR. MAINAGA: Okay. The change order involves some unforeseen field changes that the County
inspectors required, and also we have some items that were as credits. So we waiting for the
credits from our contractor so we can compile everything into one change order.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you. Member White, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If you could give us a status report on the Haiku Fire Station.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. It's not in this upcoming project, but we have the design completed already.
We're still...our main situation there is water. We need to bring in a waterline to take care of
that development area which is basically the fire station and what have you. And we're still
going through some grant processes through the Federal government to see if we can get that
grant for the water, because it...anywhere from 3 to $4 million for the water to be brought from
Haiku Road to that parcel. But it's not in this year's...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Any, any kind of timeframe on the water?
MR. MURRAY: We don't know. We're still crossing our fingers. We've, we went in, in 2009 for that
grant and then we reapplied again, so hopefully we, we get awarded. And then that would help
shepherd that project along. Once we get that, that would be really good.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I'm happy to hear the 73 percent. Bottom line is
when is your anticipated completion? Barring any major step backs, when do you figure, when
do you anticipate occupying this new fire station and making it 100 percent operational?
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MR. MURRAY: August, August 1 st or within that month of August barring anything...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You think 2011, right?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, 2011.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know 'cause there's an August in every year, so I had to
make sure.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I heard August before and then, you know, forget to ask the year
and then find out later it was a different August, you know, so, so this year, this year.
MR. MURRAY: I appreciate that. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, no, no, no. I appreciate it, Chief. Thank you. I mean the
think of people of Molokai are waiting with, with great anticipation for this. So thank you.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, I, I just need to know how many projects is still outstanding that's on
your CIP list of, of total projects, and what are the balances in each, each project?
MR. MURRAY: Right now we only have this specific project.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The Kaunakakai Fire Station?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So Wailea Fire Station is officially closed?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. It just hasn't arrived on your report. Recently everything was signed off.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Congratulations.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. That makes me happy to hear. So as, as your, your Department can
tell this Committee this afternoon then, only this is what the outstanding project, there's no other
projects that is still currently open in any way regarding change orders, requirements of
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inspection? There's no project that still has outstanding lapse bond revenues outstanding or
available for recycling by, by this Committee of any sort?
MR. MURRAY: No, that's the only project, sir.
VICE-CHAIR 110KAMA: Okay. Very good, Chief. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: You're welcome.
CIIAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch, none? Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Just curious, I'm looking at the Lahaina Fire
Station addition. Is that...so that's not in the making to do still or?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, that would be for FY '12.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. So...
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. The, the project that we had on the table was the renovation for their bathrooms
and what have you, that has been since completed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: All right. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The, the design is currently 95 percent completed?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, 95 for the current design.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Nothing more. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No, nothing, no.
CHAIR PONTANII,LA: Okay. Any more questions for the Department at this time regarding their
activities? Member Mateo, none?
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And my question, my questions have
been, had been answered, but nonetheless I, I gladly state that I've been following this
progression quite often, because I, I see it every week and I've had the opportunity to walk
through it. One, I never realized how, how big it actually is, and it really is exciting to see this
huge development occur on the top of a hill for our community. So it's progressing quite well.
I'm really excited that August is the, I guess, completion date since it started, you know, many
years ago, so I look forward to it. And I thank the Department. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, Members, when we go to Molokai, we will have an
opportunity to swing by to see what has been completed so far at the Kaunakakai Fire Station.
So, Members, that's all questions that we have for the Chief and Chief. So I, I'd like to thank
both of you for being here this afternoon reviewing your CIPs for 2011. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: You're very welcome. Have a nice afternoon.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next department which I don't see representatives for is the
Parks.
NOTE: Short pause.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we'll take a short recess, maybe ten minutes, and we'll reconvene at
1:55. Wait...are you Parks?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No, Finance.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Finance. Oh, okay. Hang on. They're on their way?
MR. KANESHINA: . . . (Inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Yeah, we'll take a recess up to 1:55, and then we'll reconvene the
review process. This meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

1:46 p.m.

RECONVENE:

1:56 p.m.

.(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
reconvened. We do have Director Ginoza from Environmental Management here this afternoon.
We were going to have Parks, but I, I guess Parks is going to be later on. Mr. Ginoza, you have
any opening comments before we ask you questions?
MR. GINOZA: No.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. That's short and simple. Okay. We'll start with Elle, if you have any
questions.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. I was really looking through my Parks and Rec list. I need
to, yeah, pass on the floor for now, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me ask questions then. First of all, Mr. Ginoza, do you have any status in
regards to any plans to move the Kahului...Wailuku/Kahului Wastewater Facility inland at this
time?
MR. GINOZA: I'm Kyle Ginoza. Right now we, we don't. We've been taking direction based on...I
know it was a previous Council maybe four, five years ago making that resolution saying we're
not going to move the plant at this time. So we have not dedicated resources toward that
measure based on the direction of this body. I know it has come up at least in discussions in this
body, but in absence of more solid direction, we, we have not dedicated resources to that end.
It's not that we, we aren't accommodating, but if it is your pleasure, we'll go forward with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I, I guess during the upcoming budget, we'll just have more discussion
on that.
MR. GINOZA: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa? Oh...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You're going that way.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're going that way.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You're going to go that way?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I'll go to my left. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, okay. Like everybody else, I was looking at something else, but I
do notice that in the expenditures there's no expenditures for the Used Oil Recovery program
and for the Hawaii Deposit Beverage Container. What's the story? How does that work? You
pay at the end or?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And maybe you can point out to the page.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, on Page 2 of the Expenditures.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: At the top. That's the 473,000-plus for the beverage container, and then
on Page 1 at the bottom there's money for Used Oil Recovery and there's money. I'm just
wondering how this works. Do we get this at the end of the year or do we use it as we go or do
we have too much money in there that we're not going to use?
MR. GINOZA: I'm sorry. Where, where is that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: On the bottom of Page 1... you got Page 1 of the Expenditures?
MR. BAZ: Excuse me. Ms. Baisa, which...what's the title of the report you're looking at?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Section 5.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's in Section 5, first page, down at the bottom. Item No., Item
No. 116886 is Used Oil Recovery and it shows you have $31,000 -CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the March

23rd

report.

COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: --that's available, 47 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: March 23` d report.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, I'm looking at December 31.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, December 31.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: December 31 st , yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wrong number, well, I mean sorry, December 31, '10, that's the one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: On Page 1?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's Section 5.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Page 1, Section 5, down at the bottom of the first page. Anyway, does
anybody know how this works? That might answer my question without having to look at it.
How does it work?
MR. GINOZA: Actually, I...oh, this is Kyle Ginoza, I don't know how come it's, it's not spent down
yet, but I did call our Solid Waste Division Chief, who should be here shortly. So if we can... if
you wouldn't mind holding that question until he arrives -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Absolutely.
MR. GINOZA: --he'd be better to answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sure, not a problem. And the same story on the, the Beverage
Containers, it shows that there is a budget item of 473,458 and nothing's been spent, 100 percent
of it is sitting there. So just curious as to how this works. Okay. Moving on, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Let's see, Mr. Carroll, you ready for any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I'm not ready.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So I'll go to Mr. Couch and I'll just work to my right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you. I went off the, the, the February 23 rd
communication -MR. GINOZA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --11-79, Page 4 of 24.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It says here the, the Wailuku/Kahului Wastewater Reclamation Facility
Tsunami Protection is 100 percent completed?
MR. GINOZA: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So what is the protection limit? I mean how, how big of a wave'?
MR. GINOZA: I'm not sure exactly how big of a wave, but basically we had already fortified the, the
easternmost side of the plant, where we elevated the electronic controls for a tsunami. And then
with this project, we fortified the foundation of the, the western side of the plant, where we dug
out the, the foundation and beefed up the foundation. But I don't know exactly what size wave it
would be able to withstand.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Just if you get a chance -MR. GINOZA: I can find that out.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I would like to find out, because I've heard -MR. GINOZA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --it was 20 foot.
MR. GINOZA: I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But I'm not sure, and I'm thinking that if it's more than 20 foot we're
going to have a lot more to worry about than wastewater at the moment no matter where it is.
Okay. Is it one question at a time or?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll allow two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay. Wanted to look at the Materials Recovery Facility
Engineering and Permitting, Page 2 of 24. It looks like 191,850 lapsed, but it says the project's
completed. Where are we standing on doing anything about a materials recovery facility?
Because I believe...didn't we have an increase in some tax to cover doing a MRF for the last
eight years I believe?
MR. GINOZA: I'm not sure about your second comment. The first one, we...the Department
transmitted the, the study, I think, in October of last year, the results of the materials recovery
facility preliminary report, and basically that report had recommended that in the initial years of
going to curbside or of trying to determine whether or not we would need a material recovery
facility in the long term, we would use a private contractor to provide that facility to just make
sure that it's a viable enterprise. And then we'd entertain the possibility of developing a County
facility, but the initial step of that would be to utilize private resources that are already available
on island. . . . (speaking to Mr. Takamine). . Do you know if there was a tax for the MRF?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah. I think what you're looking at is when we originally had funded for this
project, we had it in like two phases, Phase I was a PER, preliminary engineering report which
we completed and that's transmitted to you back in October, it's dated October 2010. That's
Phase I. Phase II was to go to design and that's what we didn't do, because based on the study, it
recommended to just do a processing contract, so we did not go to Phase II, so the remaining
funds for design lapsed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I guess, you know, I said tax but it was an increase, I believe,
the Wastewater fees were increased a little bit to...I'm sorry...pardon?
MR. GINOZA: This is actually in Solid Waste not in Wastewater.
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COUNC1LMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry, Solid Waste fees were increased to fund, help fund the
studies and possibly the MRF. Have we...are those fees still increased by that amount or are
we...have we brought back down the fees?
MR. TAKAMINE: We didn't, never did increase our fees specifically to cover a MRF. Our fees are
based on operations and capital improvement, but in terms of allocating so much money for the
MRF, I don't believe we ever did that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, I'll check. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. For the Director, it appears right now...you folks
made a decision to hold back your force main projects? You know, I see South Maui, you know,
you basically still have your whole...half your appropriation for Kihei Force Main II
replacement, you got under Countywide, $3.5 million in your renovations, modifications, rehab
projects. Is there a reason at this point in time -MR. GINOZA: For...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you're not using those funds?
MR. GINOZA: Oh, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: For Kihei Force Main No. 2, the reason why it's only half encumbered is because
actually when we bidded [sic] it out, the low bid was half of what we had estimated, so that's
why it's only half was used. It's based on construction cost when the design went through until
when it was bidded [sic] out and we got the low bid, we used about half. And what was your,
your other one?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, on that one, that was a good job Department, and just tells you how
greedy our construction guys were earlier. You know, under your Countywide areas,
Mr. Director, under the Countywide Appropriations, you know, you have a, well, you know,
million dollar pot set up by Council for station renovations, modifications, rehab, consent decree,
and you still haven't encumbered any of those funds. Can you tell us does the Department plan
to use some of it in the last quarter of the year or is that basically going to be untouched?
MR. GINOZA: Generally speaking for a lot of our projects, you know, when we actually bidded [sic] it
out, the low bid came out a lot less than what we had originally anticipated in design as well as
for some of the projects we got stimulus funding, the ARRA funding --
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. GINOZA: --and so we were able to not spend the, the County funding and instead like, for
instance the Countywide Pump Station Renovations, which was like a $7.5 million project
anticipated. Well, when we bidded [sic] it out, it came out at just over $5 million, and for that
we got stimulus funding. And so the, the County monies that we have used are for, for some
change orders that, that came about with some change in the design. But basically, you know,
our projects are on schedule, and it was a matter of if there were fund balances, for the most part,
it's because we got alternative sources. For instance, like Kaa Force Main -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. GINOZA: --we were able to get a EPA grant for that that covered much of the cost for that, so
that's why you'll see that. I forget what the design cost was, but...I mean the design estimate,
but you'll see that it's significantly under that, because we did get an EPA grant for that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, congratulations on the Department's good work. No, I, I, you know,
I, I'm watching this area of the budget well, Director, to be honest, 'cause I, I get bombarded a
lot by retirees on their sewer bill. And their argument is I still using the same amount of water as
last year but look at my bill, and I can tell you they come to my house on the weekend with the
bill, okay, to show me the, the difference. So that's why I'm concerned about what we asking
them to pay in their rates and fees versus what we're providing, because it's something I want to
take a look at, Chairman, if...even if it's only a one-time adjustment. I would rather give our
fixed-income retirees the consideration over other types of ideas that we may place as a Budget
Committee. Thank you very much, Mr. Director, good job.
MR. GINOZA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And, Chair, I noticed Mr. Takamine is here
now and I know Ms. Baisa had some specific questions which I will be asking very similar
questions, so to be fair I would like to yield to her and let ask her ask, have her chance if that's
all right with you, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Does Mr. Takamine know the questions or do I...should I repeat
them?
MR. TAKAMINE: Can, can you please repeat it?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. There were questions about a couple of items that are in the
Expenditure report, one on the bottom of Page 1, and it's in regard to--gotta have a ruler
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here--Item 116886, Used Oil Recovery. And it shows there was...there's $31,000 and some
change that hasn't been used, so 47 percent...47.7. And I'm just wondering why that's not being
used. Is it something that is not being used or we, we don't need it or can you kind of tell us how
that works? And then the second piece is on Page 2 and it's regards...regarding this $473,458
that is there in Item 176853, Hawaii Deposit Beverage Container, and I'm wondering, all the
money's there, how does this work? Do we get it at the end of the year? Are we going to need
it? 'Cause it's almost half a million dollars, it's a nice pot of money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Takamine?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, you know. unfortunately I don't have an exact answer for that. Both, both
programs are State programs and we receive grants from them for both of these. Hawaii Deposit
Beverage Container program, that line item on the second page was actually turned back over to
the State if you don't... if you recall about four, four years ago, and we do not, we do not receive
any funding from the State since then, although we just assist them in, in monitoring the
programs. So I don't know what that 473, we'd have to do some research on that, but definitely
we have not received any money from the State in that program again since, since over four
years ago, four-plus years.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, it's interesting that it's been sitting there and, you know, if it's
something that we're not going to get or something we're not going to use, then we should deal
with it. And how about the other one?
MR. TAKAMINE: The other one is probably...again that's a grant, grant funding too. I'd have to
research that, find out what, what that is. But we spent... we receive the grants from the State
and we, we use the funds to run the Used Oil Recovery program and, and buy supplies needed to
assist all the sites that we have out there and throughout the County.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. I think it's a good program, I hope that
we can keep doing it, but, you know, if we don't need 31,000 then we don't. Thank you.
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, actually I understand the State's run out of money and we might not be
receiving any funds -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, so...
MR. TAKAMINE: --in 2012 for that program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Could be pie in the sky then, we may never see this. Okay. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All right. Thank you, Chair. Well, I really don't have major
questions, I mean most of the areas that are, that were of major concern I've been, I've heard the
questions answered already, so I'll pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No questions, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you. And maybe the Department can just provide
clarification for me. In, in a lot of the projects listed, there's quite a bit that shows that project
has been completed and, and we're still running with current encumbrances, and if not a
encumbrance we, we show a balance. Can you tell me how the Department plans on, on
getting...closing of those contracts so there is a zero balance remaining or we, we get rid of the
encumbrance that has been running?
MR. GINOZA: Sure. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. When we say project completed oftentimes, it's the actual construction part of
the project completed, but as you may imagine there's a lot of paperwork involved in trying to
just get it totally completed and, and out of our books. And so I mean we work toward doing
that to, to just get it off of this. And I mean it as far as...like for instance this Tsunami
Protection Project that's on 4-...4 of 24. The project was completed in 12/31 but I believe we're
still working on just making sure that the contract is closed out and, and, you know, all of the
issues are resolved. And so a lot of these just reflect the, the fact that the construction part is
completed, and we do, I mean we don't let it just sit from that point but it's just that it takes some
time to actually just get it completely out, outside.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. The only reason I'm looking at, you know, a project that
received notice to proceed in 2008, and there still is, you know, a...not...it's an encumbrance
still showing. So if it's a 2008 notice to proceed, it should have been finished by '09 or '10 and
we're still carrying funding, you know, balances. And, and you've got several in your
Department that could consider, you know, could run up considerably, so I was just wondering
how you look at that. Because somewhere along the line, you've got to balance out in terms of
all these -MR. GINOZA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --CIPs and your spending. So yours is not too bad because they only
go back to 2008.
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MR. GINOZA: Often...oh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: But...no, go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: Oftentimes with some of these ones that...oh, was it go ahead for him or me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You.
MR. GINOZA: Oh, okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter)..
MR. GINOZA: Sorry, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Keep going.
MR. GINOZA: So oftentime [sic] with the ones that have a study associated with it, we, you know, like
say it was in, from Fiscal '08, like I believe the, the material recovery facility project that we had
just discussed was an '08...'08 or '09 project. Part of the reason why it's still open is because
like for instance for that example, we transmitted to you folks or this body in October of last
year, but we left it open in case this body wanted to have a full discussion on that study to have
the consultant be able to come here and represent himself in front of this body. So oftentimes
it's largely complete but it's, you know, it's rather difficult to try to restart something once you
close a project, so we leave it open in certain instances where there's that opportunity or there
may be that opportunity to expend funding for...to explain the, the project results.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. No, my only worry was that, you know, we, we...it
looks like money in limbo -MR. GINOZA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --where it virtually could be used to address other CIPS -MR. GINOZA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --or other needs, and after a while, we get worried about the amount or
the number that's in limbo continuously grows, yeah?
MR. GINOZA: Sure, I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So that's my only concern. Thank you.
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MR. GINOZA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Agsalog, you had any comments to make?
MR. AGSALOG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just to put the clarification as to the 100 percent of
unexpended funds, most of the State project, Mr. Chair, are for reimbursement basis, and when
we have a State project, if we don't spend all that money for that year, the State will not
reimburse anymore after that year. However, in our accounting we have not closed the particular
grants to provide that services for the State. I will call your attention to the Finance Department
where the second line to the Page 2, it's very similar to our program where the Motor Vehicle
Registration for FY '10 you are showing some prior year encumbrance and 100 percent
unexpended. We can no longer use that same grant amount. That's why we have put another
line item below it for the current year, Fiscal Year '11, so that's where we spending the money
for that particular services that we providing for the State. So that amount of money we just
have not closed the project for the prior year, that's why it's showing we have an extra money,
but actually we don't have that money because the State will not give it because they give us
another grant.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran, question?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Director, for being here. I'm just
looking at, you know, I, I heard Mr. Hokama, and a lot of the force mains still have 100 percent
budget available. It looks like in the Wastewater, I'm looking at the...as of 12/31/10, that report,
this book, and 75 percent of Wastewater budget is still there for the facilities. I'm just trying to
figure out how much...of course, you know, the phasing out of injection wells has been a big
thing in my Infrastructure Committee, and just trying to figure out where it is exactly in here that
we're making...taking steps towards that, fulfilling that ordinance? And, and how much of that
75 percent. I'm trying to just look through these different lines and go...checking the
breakdown. 'Cause I know we had all those options in phasing out the Kahului Treatment and,
and Option A, B, and C, purchasing Maui Land and Pine's old pipeline, something like that, but,
you know, I don't see any details towards any of those options. And if...are we looking at it or
are we going to talk about it?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: We...I, I think I mentioned at one of your meetings that as part of one of the approvals
we got on the order of $5 million from Intrawest to expand and to develop additional capacity of
our Lahaina Wastewater Reclamation Facility to provide reused water. And so far what we've
done is focused on, on that facility rather than try to just do it piecemeal for each facility. We
focused on the Lahaina facility and are moving forward with the design and partial construction
of that effort for Lahaina Wastewater Reclamation Facility. So for instance, for Lahaina for that
$5 million we're looking at adding another UV channel for disinfection for the reclaimed water,
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as well as retrofitting the existing channel, as well as providing means for a third channel since
each of 'em are roughly, I think, 2'/2 million gallons per day. But it's basically looking at
expanding that facility as well as adding storage at, you know, like 220 foot level roughly, as
well as transmission. So we've, we've been focusing on the Lahaina facility to expand reuse and
try to upgrade that without just doing a shotgun approach and kind of just do a little bit here and
there. So you don't see it in this because I'm not sure how it's actually shown as far as because
it'll be I guess like a grant or something, it's a private funding source.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, can I follow up?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is there a way to get a breakdown on that? Like how are we...how
this 5 million is going to use exactly and, you know -MR. GINOZA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --estimated time of completion on, on the different portions of it or
something?
MR. GINOZA: Sure. We, we currently are through the QBS process looking at...we're in the design
stage for that, so the first step is to look at the design and then next year we'd go into
construction. But we have a, a rough breakdown of what the costs would be, so I could provide
that to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, great. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Department? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I noticed on the February 23 rd communication on Page 3
of 24 that the Kihei Wastewater Pump Station No. 2 Modifications and Pump Station No. 6
Order Control Wells, the funds lapsed on that. Did we not do that project? And if not, why not?
MR. GINOZA: For the Kihei No. 2 Pump, Pump Station Renovation project, what we did was we
relooked at...after we did the, the preliminary engineering report or as we did the preliminary
engineering report for that and going into the, the design portion of that project, we found that
actually we got better flow data and found that there was more than 50 percent capacity for that
pump station. So we decided that at this point in time it wasn't needed to upgrade that pump
station, and so that's why we're not going forward with that project at this time, because we just
found that...we just felt that the equipment was in satisfactory, satisfactory condition and we
didn't need to upgrade it at that time. I believe the Kihei No. 6 is a 2011 project. I think we just
put it into 2006.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two thousand six?
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MR. GINOZA: I mean sorry, 2011.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, you moved it to 2011 lapsed.. .
MR. GINOZA: If you look at kind of in the middle of 2011 on Page 2 of 24.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So that just moved it over. Another question. The, the
gas-to-energy facility is...how is that proceeding? You had a notice to proceed on, I'm
assuming, the design on December 14 th ?
MR. GINOZA: What we did was I think I briefed Ms. Cochran's Committee about where we were with
the gas-to-energy initiative, and where we...what we decided was to go out with an RFP to try to
get a private entity to come in initially and to run that program because we didn't have the
expertise. So we have a draft of the RFP and we're still kind of commenting on that, and so we
looking at maybe summer of issuing that RFP
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: --to get that provider.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Department? If not, thank
you, Mr. Ginoza, Mr. Takamine -MR. GINOZA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for being here. I'm sure going get more questions during the Budget review
SO.

MR. GINOZA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next up is the Parks Department. We do have Deputy Director Matsui.
You notice he always smile, right. Okay. Mr. Matsui, you have any opening comments
regarding the CIPs as of December 31, 2010?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah, I don't have any comments generally that...our major project right now is the
South Maui Community Park which we're just about finishing up. The construction is pretty
much done. We're waiting for the landscaping and the grassing to get established, they're in that
90-day maintenance period, and once that's done and we accept the landscaping, we can open up
the park.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, this would be more for Corp. Counsel. We are aware that in the
ordinance, in our Code, under certain program or developments, the party has to work with Parks
Department and there's an in-lieu at times park dedication fees which goes to the community
plan district, and it's basically for new projects, you know, not for maintenance and ongoing
operations. So while it's not listed in this budget, what I, what I'm forwarding so that you have
time to respond is how can a third party that is assessed a certain amount of park assessment
fees, pays the fees to the County, and then a County director signs that they can be reimbursed
for this money if they perform certain things? My position is, once the County gets it, the only
body that can make decisions on the use of that funds including a reimbursement back to the
original pay...payee is the Council. So I say that because part of the upcoming Budget
deliberations I need to know what is the real number in the Lanai District Park Assessment Fund.
I believe there should be money but I'm told there is no money because of this administrative
letter that I don't know what is the basis of authorization that allows this to happen. So if you
can be prepared because I'm going after that money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If, if you can respond, I think we brought it up last year and the year before in
regards to that particular monies that were provided to the County and then later on reimbursed
at certain times of completion of things on Lanai. So I don't know, either one of you can.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, the Finance Director will be looking up the information as far as the fund balance
for the Lanai parks assessment district, and so we'll have that information for you shortly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Got a lot. Wanted to see...you know, we talked about
this, Mr. Director...or Deputy Director, I forgot what committee we talked about this in, but the
whole War Memorial Football Stadium improvements. The fact that we as the County are
paying for improvements for a...what is mostly a Department of Education facility. I guess it's
our facility now or it used to be...I forget how that went about, but are we getting any kind of
reimbursements from the State for these improvements? That's a lot of, of money that we're
putting in to that stadium that's being used mainly by Department of Education.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. MATSUI: You know, initially I guess 30 years ago, the County was much smaller, funds were
very limited, so the County did kind of informally seek State funds and they matched County
funds to build that War Memorial complex with the understanding that, you know, the State
would be...you know, with the high schools the use would be...they would be a beneficiary for
that. Since then, you know, it's our major, major complex that for the whole island, and it's not
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only used by the high school, it's used by, you know, the whole community. And we've had
even college games there. You know, the Pro Bowl was...not the Pro Bowl, but the Hula Bowl
was there, so...and then, and then we have Pop Warner and, you know, the youth. It's not just
high school. So you're correct in some respects, but we've been pretty much...the Countywide
parks anyway over the past I would say ten years, been going alone in, on our CIP projects and
it's not just for the complex, it's Countywide. In this past year though, we did get I think
120,000 from the State to improve the P.A. system and the scoreboard for the stadium.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Kamaole Point Improvement, you have it down as currently
encumbered 181,508. The design as of the end of last year was 81 percent complete. How is
that...where, where is the progress on that?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah. This, this project started, you know, many years ago. We started the preliminary
planning. There's also SMA that needs to go through. There's also, you know, we never had
funds for construction. When we initially started it, you know, the South Maui Park was not
started yet, and since then, that's been our focus for South Maui, pretty much the South Maui
park. So that, that Kamaole Point, you know, although it's, you know, it's a priority project has
been kind of put back on the backburners until more funds become available.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And also I noticed Puunene Raceway, is that under you guys? Yeah.
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You're gonna resurface that this year?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah, we just completed it -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just completed.
MR. MATSUI: --couple weeks ago. You know they have a big race I think middle of April, so we, we
completed all of the work that we needed to be done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Well, thanks for getting the, the park going for Kihei and
getting it almost done. I'm watching the grass grow. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Matsui, thank you for completing that Maui Raceway
repaving. Sandy?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Hokama, to respond to your question regarding the Lanai parks
assessment, available cash balance right now is $338,727.69.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That doesn't sound like nothing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Sound like a lot of hundred thousand dollars short for me.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And maybe you can provide us with a copy of the balances of, of the Lanai
park monies that was given by Castle and Cooke, I think. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Just wanted to get clarification, I believe for
West Maui we have about 4.9 million from park assessment fees? Is that the amount right now?
MR. MATSUI: Yes, that's about...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And trying to figure out what...where the appropriations are going.
I know...I think you mentioned a park above Mahinahina?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah. We're proposing to expend that in 2012 CIP for West Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is there a particular chunk of land we're looking at? Do you know?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah. We're looking at pretty much the area above the airport above Pulelehua.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it's not part of Kaanapali 20/20? That...it's not part of that
area?
MR. MATSUI: No, it's not part of that area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And also I'm looking at our book here and I'm seeing two sections
for the West Maui Skate Park. I'm just curious what's the status on that, and I'm just trying to
figure out the numbers and, and what they mean exactly? The first line, 520,000 and then
another line of 850,000.
MR. BAZ: Ms. Cochran, what page are you on?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm actually in this book, the December 31 st , 2010 book and under
Expenditures, Page 19. Oh, sorry, under CIP by District, Page 19 towards the very bottom, last
item and third to the last item.
MR. MATSUI: Yeah. The 850 was the total County funds and the 500 is from the Federal funds. So
we just awarded a contract for I think 1.1 million, so the balance was for consultants.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so what's the status on the park at this point?
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MR. MATSUI: We're going to be doing ground, groundbreaking in, in a month or so, so we're
scheduling that. The contract has been awarded. We finally got approval from the Federal
government for the $500,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wow, Federal money for a skate park. And then I'm looking, kind
of following up on Ms. Baisa's, the 100 percents that are just still sitting there. Same page, the
Lahaina Rec Center, it looks like basketball--I don't know what that stands for--court
improvements, and Wahikuli Beach Park improvements, looks like there's some monies that are
still kind of sitting there, never been used. Is that what I'm looking at? Two hundred thousand
and 200... another 200,000.
MR. MATSUI: Okay. The Lahaina Rec Center Basketball Court, that's a new appropriation. We just
have a consultant who's gonna put it out to bid, design it. It's pretty much refurbishing the
existing court, the concrete court next to the West Maui Boys and Girls Club. Okay. And the
Wahikuli Park is for the redoing a pedestrian path. It's money that we're working with
Wastewater Division, they're putting a sewer line along Lahainaluna Road, and, and they're
going to be putting it on the, on the park side, so, so we working with them giving them the
money so they can, when they're done, finish up with a walking path, a paved walking path
along that area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait. Lahainaluna Road and Wahikuli Park is complete?
MR. MATSUI: I mean Wahikuli Park...Honoapiilani -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: They've never done.. .
MR. MATSUI: --Highway, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
MR. MATSUI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, that makes more sense. Okay. Is that the, the walking
pedestrian path like from the hotels heading into Lahaina? Is that what this is?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
MR. MATSUI: But the property we own is the Wahikuli State Park...or the County Park that goes from
the Canoe Beach all the way to, almost to the Chart House.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And that's where it'll end at Canoes Restaurant now?
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MR. MATSUI: Right. Well, before that, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. MATSUI: I think to the pump station.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Has there been any--thank you--has there been any discussion on
how to connect it? I mean to make it sort of a, a safe connection between that spot? Because
you know how the road forks into...onto Front and then you have the old Chart House, the
Canoes Restaurant there. For people to connect, you know, if it ends at that pump station there's
still sort of a mini wall and a guardrail, sort of like a...and a road to nowhere, and I think a lot of
people like to connect down onto Front, go into Lahaina. Has there been any discussion how to,
you know, figure out that one portion? I think that's been sort of a concern and, you know, with
a lot of community residents in the area, if you know what I'm talking about.
MR. MATSUI: Yeah, I'm not familiar with, you know, how, but you're correct, that is problematic.
You, you-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
MR. MATSUI: --have that area that either have to move the road or can't deliver out into the ocean, so
it's going to be pretty expensive. We've been dealing with the pedestrian path that goes through
our park, and, and that's the limit of our scope.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Well, I guess it's better than nothing. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Park Department? Oh,
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. As far as the War Memorial Complex, you
know, I know the...I see here that we're 92 percent completed for the baseball, huh? The
baseball stadium? What else is left to be done? Because, you know, I go to baseball games all
the time, and what else we got left to do?
MR. MATSUI: Actually, we're done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're done, right?
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. 'Cause it said 92 percent, I was like oh, you know, I just
thought maybe I missed something so I just wanted to know if I had missed something. And as
far as the football stadium, you guys...the speaker, you know, the new, the new speakers that
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Senator Tsutsui got us State funds last year, how far along have we done with that? Have we got
anything done? Have we completed that upgrade?
MR. MATSUI: No, we have a consultant who's -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Looking at that.
MR. MATSUI: --looking at...yes, and then we're going to bid it out and put it up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And, you know, you're aware that Senator Tsutsui said if
we need more money to please at least approach him, and he'd be more than happy to see if he
can find some more State funds which we all know that may be a pie in the sky. But, you know,
there's an old saying, if you don't ask, you don't receive, right? And I mean at this point, I
believe that's, that's one of the issues. What about the lighting? I know there was talk about,
you know, the lighting for the stadium itself, you know, the football stadium.
MR. MATSUI: Yes. We already awarded a contract -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MATSUI: --and we're kind of waiting for the, I think the track to be over -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Track and field.
MR. MATSUI: --and, and graduation, and then once that's done, contractor's gonna go in. He's going
to remove the existing poles and put up new poles, and, and a new lighting system.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And those lights will be all the...that, that, that, what, shine-down
lights they call them now that they don't reflect into the sky, right?
MR. MATSUI: Yes, it's going to be fully shielded.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fully shielded -MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --just like we've done at the baseball stadium?
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. The last question I have is are we completed with our
Parks and Recreation Baseyard over there at the, at the stadium? I mean that's been a project
that's been going on since heaven knows when, but --
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MR. MATSUI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and don't tell me we're 92 percent completed.
MR. MATSUI: It's still under construction. We're looking at the end of this calendar year. The roof is
up, exterior walls are up, interior framework is done. We're putting in the electrical wiring right
now -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MATSUI: --and once that's done we'll close up the walls and then paint. And so...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I'd like to see, see that done before Mr. Pontanilla leaves
office, 'cause it started when he first walked in and we're still going after all these years.
... (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (Inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (Laughter). . . Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Matsui, for that
update.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No questions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo? Thank you. I just want to remind Members that on
February 23 rd , 2011, we, we got some updated information that was formulated and created by
Wendy Taomoto, who is our County CIP Coordinator, and in here, you have most of the, the
latest information regarding the questions that we asked. So again, you know, we can utilize this
document when we deliberate on our 2012 Budget, so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Is that in our binder?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Number 5 in the.. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. It just was placed into your binder.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm trying to sift through all the papers.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So that's the latest and the greatest information.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Members...
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Did you say February or March?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: February 23" 1 , yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. March 23 r1 .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: March. I had a later one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I get one other one just like . . . (inaudible).. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's under No. 5. -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --No. 4.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, okay. Got it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Members, any more questions? If not, I'd like to thank...oh, by the way,
just one more fast question regarding the West Maui Skate Park. Do you have a timeline when,
when that project is going to be finished?
MR. MATSUI: I believe it's ten months.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ten months?
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So a contract has been awarded?
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Matsui, for being here.
MR. MATSUI: Okay. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll take a mid-afternoon break. We'll reconvene at 3 o'clock. And who's
coming up next?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Public Works.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next will be Public Works, so we'll reconvene at 3 o'clock. This meeting is
in recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

2:47 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:07 p.m.

. (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
reconvened. With us this afternoon we do have the Director from Public Works, Mr. Goode.
Good afternoon.
MR. GOODE: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before we ask questions, you got anything to...any comments to provide this
Committee?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, thanks for the opportunity to comment. I have very few. I'm sure the
Members all have questions, I'll do my best to answer them, we have a lot of projects, and I'm,
I'm glad to see you're taking a look at 'em.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And then we'll start off with Chairman Mateo since he's so
interested in the Molokai Baseyard.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. That, yeah, and the Director did make commitments to it, so
we're gonna, we're gonna follow through with it. Mr. Director, in looking at the list of CIPs in
terms of the Implementation Report, there's several of the projects that either comes with a
current encumbrance or a balance, and several of your projects are old projects. Projects say, for
example, Kaimiike Street on Molokai since 1999 and that still has a, has a balance of $283,000.
That project is complete and still open. At what point will the Department look at cleaning up
either the, the encumbrances and/or existing balances?
MR. GOODE: Okay. Member Mateo, that's, that's a very good question. When I, you know, looked at
this report in advance of the meeting, that caught my eye, that particular project caught my eye
along with a couple others. Because I was here then. I know we finished that road, right? And
you can drive on it.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The fire station is right on the top.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. And everything works fine --
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: You're right.
MR. GOODE: --so I don't know specifically if there's a retainage issue or there was some construction
defect that we were still working with the contractor and held back some of their money. I, I
really don't know, and I want to find out because we can...we should be able to get rid of all
these projects, these older ones off the list so we can concentrate on the ones that are more
relevant. So I'll be looking into all the older projects.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman, maybe Mr. Baz can provide us with some clarity in regards to what
actions they gonna be taking. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Sure. Thank you for the opportunity, Mr. Chair and Council Chair Mateo. The
Administration, one of the first things we noticed was this kind of long list of projects that are
still open. And according to the County Charter, they remain open until they're either completed
or abandoned, and so at, at some point that decision needs to be made. And, and going back and
doing the research, like Director Goode mentioned, you know, what's wrong with that road, is
there still some issue? So there is a team that's been created. It's made up of the Managing
Director, our CIP Coordinator Wendy Taomoto, myself, and the Director of Finance, and we will
be reviewing these projects with the department directors on a regular basis to, to kind of find out
what the issue is and why there's so many projects that have either funds that are still available.
Because if a project's completed and there was unexpended funds for some reason--maybe going
under budget would be the nice thing--then we would need to disencumber those funds and go
ahead and recognize that.
And this is an ongoing project that'll be
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
implemented...it's already implemented now?
MR. BAZ: We haven't met yet, but we were going...we're going to be meeting very shortly on this
idea of trying to figure out why there's this, projects that are still on the books.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And just to let you guys know that the last Administration was
also trying to reduce the number of projects that we had in our books. I know we had quite a bit.
Mr. White, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No questions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. I guess for me the couple that stand out in your
area, one is Iao, and I think, you know, that, that's been an ongoing for quite a while. And I
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guess my question to you, because the Corps of Engineers required that, right, that upgrade and
of the lao flood control?
MR. GOODE: You mean as far as the mapping goes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and not only the mapping but the lower...the work on the
lower part, you know, what are we...where are we with that? Because it says here the survey is
24 percent completed and everything else is still kind of waiting to be done, yeah? So how we,
how we coming along with that?
MR. GOODE: Member Victorino, my recollection and I, and I'd have to maybe get back to you with
a -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --a fuller digesting of this, is that we've had a number of survey related issues and some
encroachments in particular -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. GOODE: --where neighboring properties have started to build into our properties, and dealing with
that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Thank you. And thank you for that clarification.
And, and thank you for the completion of the Eha Street improvements. Only thing, Chair, I was
disappointed 'cause I was hoping that we would get like Kamehameha Avenue's, you know, that
white top and 'cause all of the heavy traffic, all the trucks that go through that area. I thought
that was what the plan was but it was...but that's okay, maybe the next time around, we'll look
at white top for that area, yeah, 'cause it's a heavily used area. The last one I had was the Market
Street, you know, and that's been an ongoing challenge, right? And...
MR. GOODE: Big challenge.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Big challenges. Okay, thank you, I'm glad. And I, I notice you
got 84 percent or, you know, like, you know, pretty much everything completed, but we're
having a real traffic problem, aren't we?
MR. GOODE: Yeah. I think you're referring to the parking in front of the hardware store?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. I actually went out there with my staff last week because we've received
complaints about it, I think a lot of us had seen it personally happen. And so we've come up
with a few solutions --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, good.
MR. GOODE: --to that where basically you can get the cars so when they park diagonally their rear end
is not sticking out into the roadway causing people to then try to veer into the Wailuku-bound
traffic. So we have a few solutions in mind. It's all stuff that we can handle pretty much with
our contractor quickly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. That, and that would include probably the cutting next to
the drain so that the diagonal parking would be a lot...more diagonal than it is at the present
time, right?
MR. GOODE: Well, one thing we're looking at is kind of the parking the way it was before, where you
could actually kind of roll up closer to the building.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: Also painting a white stripe behind the parking stalls which is what is done on Baldwin
Avenue in Makawao.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh, uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: So it gives something that we're pretty sure the police can enforce.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. GOODE: And then finally looking to move the center line a little closer towards Takamiya's side.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that side.
MR. GOODE: it's pretty skinny in there now but you need another six inches, would make a big
difference, so those are the three measures we're looking at cleaning it up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. 'Cause I was there Friday with Lance and, you know, and
he had said you guys were there earlier, so some of the -MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --same things we talked about. And, and now we can talk
about...I don't wanna just take on, you know, only that, but that was a nice job but it just come
out with some, some, some problems, especially at that very end of Market Street. And so...and
then having the two sidewalks is also very confusing, you know, having the sidewalk next to the
buildings and then you have the sidewalk that's along by the roadway, so you got these two
sidewalks that...
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MR. GOODE: It was a shoehorning effort -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I know.
MR. GOODE: --and of course we really tried to work with the business owners there as you can tell.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And, and I, and I thank you. I mean it's like it's...and I
know even the prior, all during the planning process, it was such a moving target and, you know,
trying to get it so that everybody would be at least satisfied, and we, we still had challenges at
the very end -MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know, like now. So but thank you, Mr. Goode, I appreciate
it. And those were the main ones for, for the Wailuku District that, that I had questions on.
Thank you, sir.
MR. GOODE: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I don't know whether to be happy or concerned. I
see one under your projects under design in, in progress is the Wailuku Municipal Parking
Structure, and so I'm assuming because it's under the heading of Department of Public Works,
you are the lead agency for the County on this project, Mr. Goode? Would that be a correct
understanding of the Committee's part this afternoon?
MR. GOODE: Member Hokama, it's...I'd say it's partially correct. The, there's a number of agencies
involved, Department of Planning is one as they head up the and staff the MRA, and Wendy
Taomoto, as our CIP Coordinator, has really been the focal person on this. Wendy and I met on
the project in January. She gave me a complete and thorough rundown. I've since met with
some of the MRA members to get a better understanding, and we were all briefed including the
Mayor's Office on, you know, the status of the design work that's ongoing. So I think at this
point it's really...Wendy's taken the ball on this one and she's doing a good job with it, and so
I'm kind of monitoring from that level.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I hope it's something Council can support 'cause I would say
the Admin's batting average is zero. I've seen about eight proposals and eight proposals have
not been to the liking of Council yet. They keep trying to morph it and bring the same type of
proposals back to Council, so I think our message has been clear what Council is willing to
support regarding getting that project constructed. So I'll be watching that project very closely.
- 73 -
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The other one that I wanted to ask you about on this Lanai Drainage Project, Fraser Avenue,
Mr. Director. I assuming this is part of our overall implementation program for the drainage
master plan for the city and that this is just one component of that overall master plan that we
have...that Castle and Cooke helped work with the County of Maui. Is that a good
understanding?
MR. GOODE: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other than that, I can tell you that the community is awaiting the
resurfacing contract that you've let out, so thank you very much, Mr. Director. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Goode, I got a lot, but I'll go through a couple and
then pass for, for now. First of all on the February 23 rd communication, 11-79, Page 11 of 24,
talk about Kulanihakoi Bridge Replacement, you've got $700,000 that is available. Is that going
to happen anytime soon and are you talking about on South Kihei Road in that?
MR. GOODE: The answers to your questions, Member Couch, is that yes, it'll happen soon and it is on
South Kihei Road.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GOODE: The design...a consultant was selected, we prepared a contract through Corp. Counsel
and sent it to the consultant, so I think the last I recollect as of last week or so, we were waiting
to get it back.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So now you know we have two ways that thing can be attacked,
one from the mountain and one from tsunamis in the sea. It's been amazing what's happened to
that bridge in the last three months. I noticed on Page 15 of 24 you have Kihei/Makena Road
Resurfacing, Kenolio Road Improvements. What's...it says notice to proceed 10/12/2009 and
0 percent complete. Is that the one that's from Ohukai to Suda Store? 'Cause that's done. Or is
this another phase?
MR. GOODE: Hm. I don't know. I'll find out and get back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That's important to a few people in that...a lot of people in that
area. The roundabout, same thing, we're at 70 percent complete design as of 12/31. It's my
understanding a notice to proceed has been given and you had some issues with the right of entry
with a landowner there. Have those been mitigated and are we ready to go?
MR. GOODE: Our staff met with the landowner on Friday which was a holiday but I was glad to hear
our staff went out and met with 'em 'cause they were in town, they're only here for a week, and
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my understanding is that they were to sign the right of entry. So I haven't heard as of today yet
but we can get that done, we're ready to go.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And associated with that, the bikeway, it looks like it's starting. I don't
know if that's the mud you've removed from the floods or is that actual grading and, and work
being done now?
MR. GOODE: I don't know the level of detail on the project, but the...they have started.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Well, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Director Goode. A lot of stuff going
on in West Maui. I'm just trying to highlight a lot of the different line items that pertain, and I
found Lower Honoapiilani Road Improvements. Also there was a, a West Maui Road
Resurfacing. So just curious, West Maui Road...or sorry, Lower Honoapiilani Road
Improvements, exactly what is that going to entail and from where to where? And that probably
coincides with...there's a land acquisition, it states in the remarks, where the monies will be
reappropriated from before.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. Member Cochran, that's...okay, I found it right here. That's the top of Page 8...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Fourteen of twenty four.
MR. GOODE: Fourteen or sixteen.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Page 14 of 24.
MR. GOODE: Oh, funds for land acquisition.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. The -MR. GOODE: Yeah. That was 2010 -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --February...
MR. GOODE: --funds. Those funds actually lapsed, and that's Phase IV, so this will be the final phase
from Hoohui, I think, to Napilihau Road to continue the improvements that have been done on
the balance of, of the lower road. So reconstruction of the road, drainage improvements,
sidewalk generally on the mauka side, and the swale the makai side. Some places they have
sidewalk on the makai side but for the most part especially as you get farther north, that's
generally what it looks like. We finished Phase III a few years ago and Phase IV has...it's just
it's really tight in there so we had some land acquisition. My recollection is that we had about
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31, I think, different properties that we needed to acquire property from. About 20 of them,
we've basically agreed in concept and it's ready to go. There's about 10 more that were more
thorny, and I think at this point we need funds for land acquisition. Once that portion of the
project's been done...the project is Federally funded, I think it's in our STIP, our long-term
planning out maybe three, four years because of this land acquisition issue. But once that
Federal funds become available, we would provide the County match, the 20 percent, and the
balance would be Federally funded. So it's a couple years out still yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And, and so the West Maui Road Resurfacing, that has
nothing to do with that lower, lower road?
MR. GOODE: That's correct. That would...can you tell me what page you're on, on that one?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Three hundred...15 of 24, Page 15 of 24.
MR. GOODE: Okay. That's probably...is that in '09? Yeah, I think '09 was the last year that you
folks had district resurfacing and then it went into Countywide resurfacing. So it looks like this
project is basically done although it does say 80 percent complete. I'm not sure if there was
some missing item in there, but it looks like that work has been done. And, and generally what
we see district resurfacing, it's not a lot of money. It would be hitting the roads that are on the
top of our list to the limits we can provide for that amount of funding.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And wanted to touch base on the Shaw Street Sidewalk/Wainee, if
you can give me clarity on...does that run from Wainee down to Front? I'm not quite sure...
MR. GOODE: You know, I don't know the limits of that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: I don't know the limits.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, from the main, from the highway, main highway down to
Front. 'Cause it says Shaw Sidewalk/Wainee Street.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, so it's in front of the Salvation Army or it's on the other side of the street, I can't
remember which.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. GOODE: It's on the Salvation Army side? Yeah, I'm sorry, I don't know the limits of that one. If
you want, I can find out and get back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, please.
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MR. GOODE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And just curious about the Flood Control Project. I would think it
was to help, you know, the...when we do have heavy rains and flood. It just seems more so
now, you know, South Maui experience, experienced in Maalaea, but there's...the water just
does not clear up all along the highway, all through Lahaina, you know, Puamana through...and
there's more spots actually that just get plumes of drainage dirt runoff, whatever. So that one
area we call Grandma's which just comes off the Pali in the Ukumehame area, it's just nonstop.
I'm just, you know, wondering I would think this Flood Control Project as a whole should be
mitigating these types of, you know, issues that I see just growing more and more every day. So
I know it's a huge thing but I'm just curious, you know, exactly, you know, what is this supposed
to be doing for our...for the drainage problems that are going on in that whole strip of West
Maui?
MR. GOODE: The...this particular project is the one that would pick up the water basically from
Lahainaluna Road heading south past Puamana, so we built the outlet portion, you've of course
seen that work. This next phase would be the crossing under Hokiokio Road and then
connecting from Hokiokio to the outlet. But still yet there's more phases that would bring it all
the way back up towards Lahainaluna, picking up the water that for years ended up on Wainee
Street and really flooded out those folks pretty badly. That would mean that for the most part
West Maui at least from Kapalua down to this outlet I just described has a series of retention
basins and drainage ways that do help pick up the water and the silt and everything else. When
you go farther south as you head towards Olowalu, Ukumehame, and like you just mentioned,
the runoff that came off the Pali, actually in one of the storms, I was coming back from the West
Side and firsthand kind of slip, slid through that portion right at the end of the Pali where the
water comes over. And actually I was surprised to see that. I think it's something I think the
State Highway needs to pick up as far as picking up the road and keeping it off...picking up the
water and keeping it off the road. But I would say as it relates to the, the, the silt and whatnot in
the, in the water, I think, I guess, but I think you're also looking at a product of a couple years of
drought and fires. And, you know, the drier the conditions, the less likely anything's there to
pick up the...whatever's there on the silt. Of course as you head into Ukumehame, you know, at
one point, you know, the plantation took care of a lot of things that happened there. They had
desilting basins. But for the most side...for the most part, the West Side has, has the retention
basins and the sedimentation basins to help, to help the nearshore environment, whereas as we
noticed in South Maui this last year it just comes straight down, you know, with not much help.
So it's... sedimentation is, is natural, but it can also be manmade accelerated.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that area that just off the Pali outside the tunnel, that's State?
The State was working on all that?
MR. GOODE: Well, it's a State highway.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
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MR. GOODE: So I mean the water came down from above, and I noticed that it found a spot and just
went right across the roadway, and then it kind of went over...looked like over a little, another
little pali and dropped in the water, and some of it seemed to run down towards Papalaua.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's just kind of odd that all that mud and runoff came but it's just
pushed right up against the guardrail, so the next time any floods or rains come it's just going to
push it all into the ocean. But one more question, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm looking at this Lahaina Town Street Signage Repairs. It says
ten...it looks like a $10,000 figure there and it says funds to be, to lapse. So...and let me figure
out what page that is, 13 of 24, second item. There's been a concern in Lahaina, especially in the
historical district designation, and signs is one of 'em, the wooden signs, you know, historical
look is sort of being neglected and lost. Is this have anything to do with that, do you know?
MR. GOODE: I think it does. My understanding is that we were going to just pick this up in-house
rather than doing a CIP project, but as you're aware, the, the no parking signs are, are wood and
also the, the bases...actually they're aluminum pole inside and then they're clad with wood on
the outside. But they get hit periodically and we don't have carpenters, so it's basically it's just
something we should have just subbed out. I think we, actually our guys can make the signs, the
actual...so they have a way to...I don't know if they laser etch 'em or however they do it, but we
just need somebody to put it together and hang 'ern up. So my last recollection was they were
finding a contractor including maybe in the Lahaina Restoration Foundation doing it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I'm told for...one of the problems is the placement of them.
There's sort of a improper...because the big delivery trucks sort of back into 'em 'cause they
kind of stick off the side of the sidewalk or something. Thought that was...so perhaps in future
we move 'ern in so to avoid that from busting up our signs, I guess.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, yeah, we look at it as-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: 'Cause I'm glad the.. .
MR. GOODE: --the guy driving is the problem, but, you're right, they have a long bed typically and if
they back up...and some of those are, those stalls are...you know, they can back up and hit the
curb. Well, by the time they've hit the curb, they've already hit the sign because of their long
bed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Well, I'm glad you're looking into that. Thank you.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yes, those signs are basically something that we need to clear
with the Lahaina Restoration. I...fast question, I, I know the Lahaina Watershed Flood Control
-78-
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Project, I...the first phase is almost completed which is the bottom. Second phase, we did a
budget amendment and now I see that a contract has been executed with Maui Master Builders.
And I don't know how far that project will take you up to Lahainaluna Road, but I know there's
maybe five or six phases that we need to do to complete this particular project. According to the
notes I have here in regards to Phase 2A, we're waiting for contractor's shop drawing to be
approved. You know, kind of unusual, yeah? I mean that their plans to be approved rather than
our plans to do that work.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. Mr. Chair, this is...in some projects, we have...oh, they're all designed, but
oftentimes the, the detail of the structure...in this case, these are the arch culverts under a
particular roadway, they need to work with their supplier and give us the detailed down to the
how we're going to tie the wire" drawings and those are the, we call, the shop drawings. So
they're produced by the shop, meaning the, the folks that are building and pre-casting these
culverts. So in this particular case, the contract's been let, they're, they're moving ahead, the
long lead item will be, you know, making sure that these things will work and then casting them
and getting to the job site.
-

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Goode, for being here.
First of all, I want to thank your Department very much for taking care of Holopuni Road. That
was a request and it was...it's been taken care of People are very grateful. The big thing
pending in my district and you and I have spoken about this but I would hope that the folks that
watch this will hear your answer, and that's in regard to the status of the Polipoli Drainage
Improvements, that $2 million that we have sitting there.
MR. GOODE: Member Baisa, I thought you'd never ask.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughs)... And you knew it was going to be asked again.
MR. GOODE: Sure. The...well, we're finally getting the contract let. This one we had a case of a bid
protest which you folks may be familiar with. That happens from time to time, and we worked
with the Finance Department to move it ahead. And within the last few weeks, that's been
cleared up, so the contract will be going out, the contractor can execute it, and we're going to tell
them to go like no 'nough. ... (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. It's really an important project Upcountry and I
see the money is going to lapse at the end of this year, so I want to make sure we get that done.
That's a big opportunity. So thank you for that. And the last thing I wanted to ask you was for
the district that is Makawao/Pukalani/Kula Road Resurfacing, it says construction 80 percent
complete. What else can be done this, this year?
MR. GOODE: Can you tell me what page you're on?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm in your Capital Improvement Projects Report. It shows that we had
$3,297,000, and it's to do resurfacing in Makawao, Pukalani, and Kula. And I'm just wondering
what else can we fix before we're done here with the remaining money. It's only 80 percent
complete. If you can... if you want to get back to -MR. GOODE: I'd have to look at that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --me later, that's fine.
MR. GOODE: Oh, I see. This one 80 percent complete. I'll have to find out 'cause that should have
been done.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. 'Cause, you know, we really need any
resurfacing that can be done Upcountry, our roads are a nightmare, so if you can get, use the
money I'd appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I am up-to-date on the East Maui, all the East
Maui projects already so I have no questions on them. But I would like to say thank you to
Mr. Goode. Since I took office, he's been very responsive answering immediate concerns that,
that had, and I'm very appreciative of the fast action every time, the same day when I brought
something to him. So thank you, Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Fast question, Dave. You know I noticed that on all, all of the
construction work that we have going to the, you know, from the County of Maui to construction
folks, how do we, how do we keep track in, in regards to having projects, projects being
completed on time when you have contractors bidding on 5, 10, 15 projects and, and they have
maybe, you know, a dozen projects that they need to do for the County of Maui? How do we get
after those guys to complete our projects but, you know, the timeframe that we want them to
complete? And is there any penalties should they fail to complete on the certain, you know,
estimated time of completion? I know you've been here like four months but you've been here
before.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He doesn't have it done yet?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter)..
MR. GOODE: Well it's, it's a good question, and there's a couple things that are happening. One
happened...really it's contractual and there's two places in the contract where we can, you know,
write our terms and so that we get more control. And one of those terms I know that they started
actually before I got here, just, but just recently this last year, was to say, well, once we award,
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you...we're going to give you an NTP, a notice to proceed with 90 days. So if you think, oh,
you're going to get this contract and then you can say well, I'm not ready, I'm not ready, I'm not
ready, which is...might be fine for the contractor because they're planning their work, but it may
not be fine for us and the public and our constituents. So now we're saying once you get
awarded, you're going to get an NTP within 90 days, so if you feel you have too much work,
maybe you shouldn't bid on this or maybe you need to bid higher so that you can, you know,
whatever you gotta do to make the job go. I think that's going to be a really helpful clause. It
already is proving helpful 'cause now we're starting to execute to those contracts we went out to
bid for at the end of last year and we get to have that clause. And if they don't perform, then we
kick in the other clauses where we have liquidated damages, and the liquidated damages section
of the contract says if you don't perform for whatever reason and you don't perform in a timely
manner, we have a per-day charge in those contracts. And usually liquidated damages are
something that...there's a healthy body of litigation out there, and generally the way the clauses
work is that we agree that we can't really put our fingernail on exactly what the cost, it's costing
us or our constituents, so we're going to agree it's $1,000 a day or it's $500 a day. But it's
substantial enough that we feel, you know, the public's getting the benefit of their delay by
lowering the price, and they're feeling the pain enough to not want to do that. So I'd say those
two sections right there are where we can control our contractors into starting on our clock and
finishing on our clock.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. And, and maybe a question for Corporation Counsel. When we do
have contracts out there and they're not completed and, and same contractor comes out and bid
on another project, and, and, you know, it kind of snowball, you know. We may have a
contractor that has two, three, maybe four jobs that not completed, should be completed, and we
continue to receive bids from, you know, those contractors. How do we stop them from
doing...from bidding on the County projects?
MS. HEELY: I'm not sure if we can stop any contractor from bidding on a contract, but they...we sure
can take into consideration or place things within the certain contract in our general terms and
conditions in regard to contractual remedies what, which Director Goode was mentioning in
terms of damages and termination clauses or the multi-term contract where the... if the funds
aren't appropriated, then we can terminate the contract. But there's certain measures that we can
take on the front end in addressing those issues that may arise, but I'm not sure if we can prohibit
a contractor from bidding on any particular project. But if it's known that this particular
contractor may not be able to complete projects, then certainly the Department or the County
may take that into consideration when they're offering a contract or considering who's bidding.
But we also are governed by the Procurement Code which says we have to go with the, the
lowest bidder.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And maybe you should be a member of Mr. Baz' committee
when they review all the old projects so that you become very aware of the things that I just told
you.
MS. HEELY: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I got one more question before I call on you, Mr. Hokama. This is
in...probably for the Finance Director regarding--or maybe Mr. Goode--STIP or Federal funds.
If they expire, do we lose the funding?
MR. GOODE: Let's, let's see, you're saying if they expire, so we've actually entered into a project
agreement with the Feds. Once we've entered into a project agreement, I think we're counting
on those funds, and I would think there would be remedies in that agreement for some reason if
they didn't pay. Generally, I think as you know, we front the money and then get reimbursed as
the project goes along, so we might be out...we pay in January to the contract, we may not get
our money from the Feds till March or something. But I think once we have a project agreement,
we're good to go, but if the funds were somehow lapsed or moved on prior to the project
agreement, I think, I think we would be at risk in getting those if we don't proceed timely enough
up to the agreement point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama, followed by Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The, the Chairman brought up something that I guess for those of us who've
been following government contracts, I mean, this is Maui, we know the bad contractors, it's
kind of common knowledge. So what you shared with the Committee, Mr. Goode, and what the
Corp. Counsel shared with Mr. Goode is that unless...well, it's hard to get rid of the bad apple is
what you're telling me as long as they continue to submit RFP proposals within the procurement
parameters, right, Corporation Counsel?
MS. HEELY: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what prohibits Mr. Agsalog right there, Director of Finance, to debar the
contractor so he cannot in the State of Hawaii bid for any government contract for a minimum of
three years? What prevents the County from placing those entities on this list?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. HEELY: If I may? Mahalo. There is a debarment process that's spelled out in Chapter 103 of the
Procurement Code that I can look into that question and get back to you, but there is a process
and I,1 can find that answer for you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Why hasn't that been utilized by the County departments for bad service?
MS. HEELY: I know in, in previous or recent meetings, we did discuss certain issues with debarment of
certain vendors, but I'm not sure of why it hasn't been utilized more in the past.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is it because our departments don't know about this procedure?
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MS. HEELY: Perhaps, that may be a possibility, but I'm not sure of the exact reason. Or maybe
because of the hurtles that need to be jumped over for the debarment process within the
Procurement Code.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It cannot be as bad as dealing with a bad contractor. Mr. Agsalog, do you
have anything you can share with the Committee this afternoon?
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Agsalog?
MR. AGSALOG: We have discussed debarment and the Corp. Counsel is right, there is a process. We
have, we have some vendors that we have identified that we would like to go through the process
also. So I think your recommendation as far as the contractors, we have not looked at the
contractors, but we have discussed specific vendors that we would like to go through with it.
But, yes, we were discussing, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is there something you need from the Council or this Committee regarding
amendments or revisions to the Code that would assist the Administration's efforts?
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair, I...at this time I don't think it's the...we need something from the
Council. It's the State procurement process that we have to satisfy the process in proceeding
with the debarment. So I can appraise you some more as we move forward to what we have
already discussed with the Administration.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. AGSALOG: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, it's for you and Mr. Mateo for this County that as our Chief
Procurement Officers I'll be happy to support your debarment of certain vendors. Thank you so
much, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I guess this is for Mr. Goode. You have to play musical
chairs there. Wanted to talk about two separate things. First thing is bikeways. I notice in
Kihei-Makena area you have...we'd been working on the Waipuilani Bike Path for a long time
and then all of a sudden it looks like $100,000 lapsed. That's Page 16 of the CIP Report.
MR. GOODE: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you know what, what happened there or is it gone, gone by the
wayside or?
MR. GOODE: You know I don't know, I mean it lapsed before I got here, and I don't recall if it's in
our FY '12 request. But this was the bike path and the, and the beach reserve?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: I believe, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: From Waipuilani north and then coming out somewhere onto South Kihei Road.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: No, I don't know the status. I can look into it and find out.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Mainly because we're starting to get into the, the fact that
gasoline prices are so high and so bike paths... bikes are going to be used a lot more. So the
more we can get them off the roads, the better, safer. Baldwin Avenue Bikeway, however, it
looks like that's back again and I understand from the biking community that that's a project that
they feel is, is unsafe.
MR. GOODE: Well, that, and that project's actually in the FY '11 Budget I believe, so at least the
previous Administration and the previous Council thought it was good enough to proceed with.
So we have it...we have not selected a consultant at this point. I've heard both sides of that, that
story. I haven't researched it too heavily yet. But I think we'd all agree that some type of bike
facility down Baldwin Avenue is needed. So whether it's a separate path or it's expansion of the
road and how you deal with the Shower Trees, it's probably worthwhile going into the design
and environmental studies, which is what this money would be for, to see maybe if, ferret out
what is the best way to make it happen.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The.. .
MR. GOODE: And if I got, if I got different direction from this Council saying, no, we don't want to do
anything there, then we can do something else.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. What is the Department's general feeling towards doing more
bike paths versus less? 'Cause there's a whole lot that can be done in South Maui for sure.
North Shore, as well, has been waiting for a long time for continuations of bike paths. So is, is
the Department waiting for the Council's lead or do you have some plans in the works?
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MR. GOODE: Well, we have various bike master plans. There's been bikeway master plans for
15 years. We have certain funds we...become available every year. We want to...and all our
new facilities, we try to put on bike paths or bike lanes. We're, you know, we're not just
proponents of cars, we definitely want to help with the pedestrians and bicyclists as well, and,
and for me personally, I, I, I love getting these bike paths done. I think it, I mean to me just
seeing, you know, a fully utilized street, it's all getting utilized.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, that's refreshing to hear. Thank you. The other set of questions,
it's real quick. On Page 17 of the CIP Report, I noticed that about the fourth one down says
Kihei/Lipoa, I'm assuming Kulanihakoi, $3.5 million is available for road, for roads, and then
you go further on down, there's $1.865 million available for Kihei Road C which that's another
thing, and several other things to the tune of about $7 million available for roads in Kihei.
That's, that's a pretty good penny, is that really available or is that an accounting issue?
MR. GOODE: Sir, you're looking on page...make sure I'm on the right page with you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Page 17 of the CIP Report right here, under CIP -MR. GOODE: That one, got it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --December 31 St .
MR. GOODE: Right. Okay. Yeah, actually I noticed this, this was the...okay, back up here, the three
point...$3,520,000, it actually says FY 2001.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. That...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Weren't you here at that time by the way?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, I was here so I know a little bit about this. I don't know why it's here, to be quite
honest, 'cause I don't think we have this as a current project. So that's something I'd like to talk
to the Finance Director, Mr. Baz here, to find out why it's on here. But this project was part of
the, the phasing of South Kihei Road Improvements Phases I, II, and III that we did starting way
down at Kalama Park and working towards Lipoa. The area around Lipoa was to be done as a,
an improvement to the signal there, where we, we used to be able to get 100 percent Federal
funds. So we kind of carved that out as a 100 percent only project and would actually get us all
the way through Piikea, and then we started South Kihei Road Phase IV going further south.
This project got delayed because the Feds, when they looked at the traffic report, they said hey,
you've got this other signal at Azeka's, it don't make sense. You've got to get rid of the Azeka's
signal, which we couldn't do because it was a Council condition which I think that your
predecessor put in as a condition on a project. So we were in this Catch 22 and couldn't resolve
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it in any way certainly expeditious enough, so it...the project I think is just on hold. I think we
have a design done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are those funds still available to do that?
MR. GOODE: I doubt it, but I'm going to talk to my counterparts here and we can find out and get back
to you. It's not on any STIPs that I've seen.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it has to be on the STIP then?
MR. GOODE: Well, generally, but this report kind of makes it...it seems like the money -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. It seems like we've got -MR. GOODE: --and somehow, but I don't...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --$7 million here available for Kihei.
MR. GOODE: I, I don't, I don't know. I'll find out.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It's, it's obviously gotta be a mistake.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH Well, I guess that goes to my other question to you, it mentioned South
Kihei Road Phase IV, but obviously that's been delayed for a while. It's on Page 17 as well, the
second one. Actually, that's saying you have some current encumbrance on South Kihei Road
Phase IV. What is that for?
MR. GOODE: Well, that's probably for the design contract. We had to complete a design.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's 2001, but it's still encumbered?
MR. GOODE: Well, again this kind of comes back to the issue that I think Mr. Mateo brought up about,
well, there's the old projects...what were we doing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Something that we need to find out because the question that I asked them
was...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It looks we've got a lot more money -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --than we probably do. All right. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Question that I had asked about old jobs on the STIP or Federal funding. So if
the Department can or Mr. Baz take a look at that, lot of money.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You done?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. I just wanted to follow up on this Countywide Speed
Hump program, if there's anything in that for West Maui, do you know?
MR. GOODE: I don't know the specifics but we get them by request, so as requests come in, prioritize.
So if West Maui has an outstanding request and we found it to be technically feasible, the answer
would be yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Great. I'll put in a request. And curious about the South
Maui crosswalk that got passed through my, through my Committee. When will that happen or
has it happened -MR. GOODE: Actually, I just heard about that -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --the one by Mana Kai?
MR. GOODE: --today 'cause they were looking for the signed bill by the Mayor and then that could
give us the go ahead to have it done. So I saw an e-mail this morning and while they're tracking
that down, I asked my Engineering Division just prepare the work order already and get it to
Highways.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: All right. Excellent. And I'm also looking on Page 20 of 24,
Kanaha Valley Improvements. There's 25,000 funds to lapse. Just curious, the details on that, if
you know?
MR. GOODE: Where is it?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That might have to do with water though, I'm not...
MR. GOODE: Oh yeah, that, that's a Water project.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, is it? Okay.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: They coming up next.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Great. That's all. Thank you. Thank you, Director.
MR. GOODE: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Go ahead, Corporation Counsel.
MS. HEELY: Sorry, Chair. I just wanted to follow up on Mr. Hokama's question regarding debarment
as well as a little bit of discussion. I did, found the exact statute in State law 103-...103D-702, it
says the authority to debar or suspend. It says after reasonable notice to the person involved and
reasonable opportunity for that person to be heard, the Chief Procurement Officer, after
consultation with the using agency and the Attorney General or Corporation Counsel, may debar
a person for cause from consideration for award of all public contracts and from performance of
any public contract. It says the serious nature of debarment and suspension requires that the
sanctions be imposed only in the public interest for a governmental body's protection and not for
the purpose of punishment. It also explains that the debarment period shall not exceed three
years, and it explains the authority to debar or suspend shall be exercised in accordance with the
procedures prescribed by rules adopted by the Policy Board and shall be applied only to causes,
convictions, and violations under a whole list of Subsection B that they list within this statute.
And these causes for debarment include the following: conviction for a criminal offense,
conviction under State or Federal statutes relating to embezzlement, et cetera, but one of these
provisions is violation of contract provisions, deliberate failure without good cause to perform in
accordance with the specifications or within the time limit provided in the contract, or a recent
record of failure to perform of unsatisfactory performance in accordance with the terms of the
contract. And it goes on to explain more of the procedures, but it also says that the Chief
Procurement Officer has to look into various factors when considering such a severe sanction.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. HEELY: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Further on that topic, it...one of the sections you just read stated that the
legislative body has the ability to determine what, what ways we could, we could enforce that
debarment. Could you forward to Mr. Hokama or, or our Chairman what you feel this legislative
body could do to put the County in a position of moving forward with the concerns outlined by
the Chair earlier?
MS. HEELY: I could do.. .
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm assuming that most of it relates to lack of performance and, and I
think it's worth us exploring. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
MS. HEELY: Yes. I could do that if the Committee Chair would -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, please.
MS. HEELY: --submit a transmittal and I could -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. HEELY: --respond -CHAIR PONTANILLA: We can do that.
MS. HEELY: --and look into those rules as well as adopted by the Policy Board.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I think the State gives us a good initial set regarding the general
parameters. I think what Council can do is look at how to make it maybe more specific to our
requirements and our needs as a County, particularly in contracting. You know, let's say they
get the three strike rule, you screw up three contracts, that's good enough to start debarment
consideration, because with one contractor, I've been, what, I waited over ten years to have that
CIP project closed and that was nine years too long. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. One final question before I let Mr. Goode go. I know we
not supposed to talk about the 2012 Budget, but as far as the road resurfacing -COUNCIL MEMBERS: . (Laughter). .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for 2011, we had put in, you know, a considerable amount without going
into the different districts. And I was, you know, thinking about the Speed Hump program, put it
in, into like a Countywide and you guys administer that, so think about that. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: One quick...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Final question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Director Goode, who's in charge of a branch or a bush
or something that's blocking a street sign to cut that branch? Is it County? I mean the plant's
coming out of someone's front yard.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. In that case, it's probably the property owner. if it's a County street tree, it's
probably the County via the Parks Department. Just let us know, shoot me
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --shoot us an e-mail or something and we'll -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's Panaewa Street -MR. GOODE: --straighten it out.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in Lahaina. I grew...born and raised in Lahaina, I drove down a
one-way road, I didn't know it became a one-way, and I'm...got stink eye by the guy because
the sign was blocked by one tree. So just...I go, oh my God, this is.. .
MR. GOODE: How come everybody's coming at me?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. I'm not a lost tourist, I grew up on this road, I had no idea it
was one-way. . . . (laughter). .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Panaewa. Anyways, I'll shoot you an e-mail. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, David, for being here.
MR. GOODE: You're welcome, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We appreciate it, and we look forward during the Budget session.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (inaudible)..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I know. Thank you. Okay. The last department we have is--and
they've been waiting patiently--is the Department of Water Supply. Water, Department of
Water.
NOTE: Short pause.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, some of you requested that the Water Department be here,
so we have the Director, Mr. Taylor as well as our Head Engineer, Mr. Chang. So opening
comments if you do have one, Dave?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We'll certainly be happy to answer any questions you have, and
by we, I mean Mr. Chang, our Division Chief of Engineering who knows a lot more about the
CIP than I do. But we'll help you in any way we can. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So I'll go from my left to my...to the right. Member Carroll, you
have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Not at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, sir. In this December 31 st book, Finance Director's Quarterly
Report, on Page 7 of Expenditures which relates to Makawao, Pukalani, and Kula, I'll let
Mr. Taylor find his spot. You gotta flip through this a while to find all of this.
NOTE: Short pause.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. Baisa, what page again?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's on Page 7.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven of twenty.. .
MS. HEELY: Sorry, Ms...Councilmember Baisa, is it under...there's two Section 5 Expenditures. the
Operations or the Grant Programs?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This...I don't know.
MS. HEELY: The same one we were looking at with Public Works?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
MS. HEELY: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
MS. HEELY: The Grants Programs.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, that makes it even more exciting if it's grants. We have a
tremendous amount of money in here and shows 100 percent unspent, 100 percent unspent. So
we're wondering of course is there any chance that this is going to be used in this, this year?
MR. TAYLOR: Member Baisa, could you, could you just read a couple line items so I, so I know -COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: --exactly what you're referring to.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let, let me, five...let me give you the number of the item, 530140,
Omaopio #3 Tank Lower, 40,000 gallons, I guess, and it shows an appropriation of 102,551
budget and 100 percent still there. There's even one...several further on down, Piiholo Water
Treatment Plant-Organic Carbon Red [sic], $5 million, it's sitting there, right below it
$5,500,000 for Kamole Water Treatment Plant-High Lift Pumps.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's in Capital Improvements?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's in CIPs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 7, yeah?
MS. HEELY: CIPs that.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: CIPs.
MS. HEELY: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Page 6.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Got it?
MS. HEELY: Okay. Second page.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, it's on 7, Page 7.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Section 6.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Section 6, yes. Just like to hear from you, you know, what is the
possibility of any of this is going to happen? 'Cause it's a big amount of money.
MR. TAYLOR: I, I think as a whole these are all in the contract phase, so we haven't gotten to the first
payout. I think that's, I think that's why they show zero.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But you would say that the majority of them will be under contract and
will be spent?
MR. TAYLOR: I'll let Mr. Chang answer that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. CHANG: Good afternoon. You mentioned the Omaopio Tank, Lower Tank.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. CHANG: That project was originally in the last fiscal year budget, but because of the, the
little...when we went out to bid, it cost a little bit more than what was budgeted for, so we
switched it to Fiscal Year 2011. And the status of that is the contracts are being drafted and I
believe the contractor is just about ready to sign, so we'll be going into construction on that
Omaopio Lower Tank.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. How about the biggies that I mentioned further down?
MR. CHANG: The Piiholo...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The Piiholo, yeah.
MR. CHANG: Yeah. The organic carbon reduction, that one is under design and if everything follows
schedule they should be going out for construction advertising end of the year and with the
contract encumbered by the end of the year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So you will encumber the money by the end of the year?
MR. CHANG: Yes, it's scheduled to, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. And that's the same thing for the big Kamole Water Treatment
Plant-High Lift Pumps, that 5V2 million?
MR. CHANG: That one, we got a pretty good deal. The, the bids came in at about half so it's under
construction. We have a contract for construction already.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Terrific, that is just wonderful. You know, it's just great to see these
water projects going, because we all know we need them very, very much. So that, that answers
my questions. There's one...the rest don't...I, I get the drift. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Mr. Chang, for those projects, the design is going to be
completed in 2011, construction monies will be in 2012?
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MR. CHANG: Some of the Fiscal Year 2011 projects, we don't have the funding for construction for
some of them, but the intent is to at least have the design completed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In 20...
MR. CHANG: In the...as far as these Fiscal Year 2011 projects, we have some design projects but none
of, not all of them have follow-up funding for construction because of the priorities of other
projects as far as we don't have enough money to do constructions for all of `em.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. And the only reason I ask is that the correspondence that we
received March 23 rd , some of the projects that we're talking about this afternoon also appear on
the report that was given to us, and those are the same numbers that you see in the Finance
Director's Quarterly Report on, ending December 31 4 . So...yeah, it does show the Omaopio No.
3 Tank Lower, Lower Omaopio. We had a budget amendment that, that provided you with
$668,000 more because of the construction or the bidding was higher than expected. So, yeah,
most of the information...the current, most current information is with this report. So thank you,
Member Baisa. Any more questions? Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Yeah. I'm just curious about the Kanaha Valley
Improvements, it says there's 25,000 and funds to lapse. I'm looking...you need me to tell you
where I'm looking at? Page 20 of 24, February 20, 20 th , 2011.
MR. CHANG: That particular project was for repairs that were needed on Hans Michel's property. So
I'm not too sure our baseyard how much money they spent so far. It's, it's kind of like as needed
type of repairs on that intake and the transmission line near Hans Michel's property.
MR. TAYLOR: And, Member Cochran, our, our Field Operations staff fixes that themselves. They
have already ordered the pipe. I, I don't know the exact balance, and they're going to be...I
mean they have to take it in there by helicopter, it's, it's back in the middle of, of nowhere, it's
almost impossible to get to. And we are initiating those repairs ourselves, so our staff is working
on that already, I know they've already ordered the pipe, and they're scheduling the work.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. And also looking at the next page, Page 21 of
24 at the very bottom, West Maui Source Improvements, $1 million. I'm just curious what does
that entail?
NOTE: Short pause.
MR. CHANG: Oh, this is for the Mahinahina Exploratory Well. We have the...we went out to bids and
Goodfellow Brothers was the lower, lowest bid, and we try...we're in the process of getting the
construction contract completed for that one. So it's, it's for a exploratory well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: In Mahinahina?
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MR. CHANG: Yeah, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So to expand Ms. Cochran's question, you know, you, you just mentioned
the Mahinahina. I notice you also have Wailuku Well II, you have another project just called
West Maui Source, you have a Haiku Source, you have a Waikapu Source, you have a Wakiu
Well which is the East Maui, Hana area. Is this the Department's concentrated effort to do well
exploratory and, and, and County of Maui taking the, I guess, the first step to doing water
development, potable water development now instead of waiting for a developer third party to do
those types of potential site exploratory development?
MR. TAYLOR: That is correct. These are Department of Water Supply initiated efforts, including
some of those Wailuku wells are to replace Shaft 33, so to tap the same water without using that
as, as it's becoming, you know, will become more unreliable in the future. But, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So and I'm, I'm happy to hear that, Mr. Director. And so what has the
Department experienced from moving these things forward? Government is our Department's
own worse enemy in processing. It's been verified that it takes 50 percent longer than if private
sector does the same type of projects. Can you share anything with the Committee this afternoon
of what the County has learned by being now the main responsible entity to provide potable
drinking water for the community?
MR. CHANG: Councilman Hokama, yeah, I think, I believe what it shows is if the Department has the
will and the money to do something, especially in water source, we can do the development and
get the whole source capacity instead of sharing with the developers.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How have you settled...in the past, you know, the Committee, the Council's
been told that we had to wait or there was a sharing of this multi jurisdictional drill or rig that the
counties, you know, would, I guess, put in their reservation and say, you know, we want to use
the rig to drill a potential shaft. You folks have found a way to overcome that sharing of
infrastructure whereby now it's, it's not an issue for the County's Water Department?
MR. CHANG: Unfortunately, no, we couldn't, couldn't work out the kinks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you're still dependent on that situation, Mr. Chang?
MR. CHANG: The situation...I'm trying to answer the question which 1 believe if the question was is it
viable to have that shared rig?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: In the past, yeah, and, and let me go back, you know, let's go back three,
four, five Water Directors, you know, Mr. Craddick and, you know, Mr. Haines and before,
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Mr. Tengan even. One of the Department's concerns was that in the State there was this rig to
do this, this drilling, exploratory drilling, and we had to wait our turn after Big Island County or
Kauai County. So that always was a issue for us regarding timing and appropriation, because
even if we gave you the money, the answer might be we don't have access to the rig to drill the
hole. And so my question or what I'm asking from you is have you overcome that infrastructure
issue and if you did, which is great because I see the project's now being listed, how have you
overcome it, the challenge?
MR. TAYLOR: I think it's important to know that although we're the leaders and we're the project
managers, we put these projects out to bid and private contractors who own their own rigs bid on
the projects. So the logistics of what equipment is available is their problem. Whether they own
a rig, you have to ship a rig in or rent a rig, whatever, you know, we don't get involved in the
equipment selection. We put a project out to bid and it's up to the contractors to, to supply the
necessary equipment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And maybe about six years ago, Chairman, the Council put up
money for a Dr. Thomas from the University system to do for the Water Department exploratory
sites to see if we had, what is called, ancient artesian water such as the Big Island and, and
whether or not that was a feasible alternative for the County to consider as part of their on
land-based water resource development plan. Because we were asked to consider desal options
and other options, but Council was never comfortable that we have exhausted our land-based
opportunities. And the reason I'm asking it now is that I wanna know if that's still something
viable, Chairman, to consider, and what happened to all those past appropriations to the Water
Department regarding this exploration option that the Council has supported by providing the
funds?
MR. TAYLOR: Neither of us are really aware of exactly where that went those years ago, so that's
something we'd have to look into more and, and probably ask some people who may have been
involved. We're not sure at this time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Because if I remember right, Chairman and Mr. Director, I swear we
put up $1 million. I mean we put up a lot of money to go...to, to get this assessment done. In
fact I know Dr. Thomas came and to even look at potential sites to do the test drilling to see if
this existed on Maui as it exists on the Big Island. So I think we need to follow up, Chairman,
with the right communication to the Department for a written response, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll do that, Mr. Hokama. I think it was $100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, 100,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And a report was made maybe five years, four years ago --
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's been a while.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in regards to the study that Dr. Thomas was doing. I understand that...the
last I've heard he was doing some exploration, of all parts, Nahiku. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank you, Chair. And, you know, you know, if you wanted
those answers then I could've helped you out. Well, number one, you're right, and in fact last
year he came and talked to us early part of last year. That was before you had returned,
Mr. Hokama. The rig no longer exists. The counties gave up having that because of the
problems you were referring to, so the rig doesn't exist anymore. There's no sharing of the rig, it
was too much of a hassle, and so all the counties said forget it. And you're right, basically all of
that is contractually through the contractor who's going to dig the well. In fact if I'm not
mistaken, the USGS, that rig that was actually contracted through them to the counties had so
much problems with it that actually they sent it back, so I don't even think the rig's in the State
anymore, that drilling rig that you were referring to. So those I could answer those questions
basically, and Dr. Thomas has not gotten back to us. In fact, I'm in the process...I was in the
process of drafting a letter. So I'll, I'll direct the letter to you so then you can follow up, because
he was working along the East Rift Zone out Nahiku side, you're absolutely correct. Remember,
that's what he had come to talk to us about, and it was the $100,000 we had put aside for him.
So those, those are presently moving along. The question I had for you is, I see here that--again I
go back to my famous Waikamoi Flumes--I see over here that we have some money and of
course we're looking for more money, and, but we have something like 487...$484,545 that
current encumbered in December 31, 2010? Is that...
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: On page, it's on Page 7 of the, that same report, yeah. So that
money is still there for us whenever we can get around to the other stuff we were talking about,
design. That's the money going be used for the design of the, the flumes, right?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes. We're currently in design -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In design.
MR. TAYLOR: --and so design usually is design and permits.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: So, so we're already in that process.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, and I appreciate your help. And also, Chair,
just to let everyone know that Senator Kidani and, and Senator Tsutsui has been up here, and
they are presently looking for money, probably not in this budget but for next year, for SFR
funds that we will get some money from that for this specific purpose which is very important
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for the Upcountry, especially the upper Kula line, yeah? One of the big things, yeah? The other
question I had is this Wailuku Well Exploratory Drill I, is that the...is that Waikapu, I'm sorry,
see I went blank. Which, which well is this? I'm sorry.
MR. TAYLOR: I think that's the well right by the lao Surface Water Treatment Plant.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's the...for to...
MR. TAYLOR: That, that's a well that we're basically trying to tap a number of wells around Shaft 33

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thirty-three, okay.
MR. TAYLOR: --so that we get the water out of wells and not out of the shaft, so we can take the shaft
out of service.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Out of line, yeah, okay. That's what I wanted to...I thought that
was it. Thank you, Chair. That answered my question. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr., Mr. White? Chairman Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chair, I just want clarifications from, from the Department on two
of our projects. One is the Kawela Tank Improvement and the other is the Kalae Tank
Improvement. Kalae Tank Improvement in Fiscal Year 2008 and the Kawela in Fiscal Year
2009, apparently it's the same contract from the same, from the same vendor. I'm, I'm assuming
it's the same, so if you can just provide that, that clarification for me?
MR. CHANG: Councilman Mateo, yes, it is the same contract.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. And the other, the other one would be the, the
Molokai Backup Generator, and if you can give me some kind of a date as to when that'll be
completed?
MR. CHANG: Councilman Mateo, I'm sorry I don't have the schedule on that one, but I'm sure we'll
have it done before the...within the time period allowed.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Because it was primarily just a furnish and deliver,
so I'm looking forward to the completion of that project. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Kalae, Kalae, Kalae, Kalae. Oh, okay. Kalae Tank Replacement,
according to this, construction beyond 2012, project is being reevaluated. Why is the project
being reevaluated in regards to the Kalae Tank Replacement? Design, 20 percent completed,
new 300,000 gallon tank, project being reevaluated.
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MR. CHANG: Chair, the original idea on this project was to...instead of doing the project we are doing
now for that Kalae Tank Replacement, we initially wanted to find another site for it, but
unfortunately the...I believe we could not get the land from the adjoining properties, not...across
the highway. So we decided just to go with the current project. So pretty much we abandoned.
we abandoned the first concept and now we're going with this current concept of building a
100,000-gallon-plus or -minus tank at the, at the existing site.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. One more question that I have. Panaewa and Mill Street
Waterline, design, 5 percent completed, design shows construction will be extremely costly, and
the evaluation is to...evaluation to terminate project pending. Can you explain?
MR. CHANG: Yes. When we got into the design phase, we found so many sewer laterals that it just
turned out that the cost estimate to do this project was not really worth spending that much
money. Too expensive so we decided to just abandon the, the project.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So this waterline will replace something that is...need to be replaced?
MR. CHANG: I believe it was for a larger-sized line for fire protection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So any alternatives, any alternatives?
MR. CHANG: No. It's...that street is...there's too many sewer laterals so we don't...we figure it's just
not worth the, the price to go into construction.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So the existing fire flow can...is sufficient?
MR. CHANG: I recall it's only like a 4-inch pipe so it probably would not be sufficient for fire
protection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How do we handle fires?
MR. CHANG: It's a tough, tough call. I I'm not sure the Department wants to spend that much
amount, amount of money.
,

MR. TAYLOR: Let me give it a try. Mr. Chair, there are a lot of lines all through the island that are
substandard for current fire flow, so I think what the Department tries to do is basically a
"low-hanging fruit" approach to these lines. Rather than just choosing one and saying let's do it
at any cost, I think what the Department's been doing and will continue to do is say, you know, if
we're going to do X number of thousands of feet a year or however many feet a year of
upgrading lines for fire protection in built-up areas, we'll, we'll keep going after the low-hanging
fruit so we can get the most and help the most people. So when Mr. Chang says, you know,
we're, we're, we're moving on, it means we're going to move on to another project that is going
to bear, you know, better fruit for, for the same price and help more people.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good answer. Thank you. Members...oh, Member Couch followed by
Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: As a follow-up to that, then if somebody needed a building permit
for...on that line that you just decided you're not going to do, they are responsible then for
coming up with fire flow?
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah. That's correct. And in fact, if you think about the responsibilities of the
Department, the County could take the, take the position saying look, when development has
gotten to the point where we no longer have adequacy for fire flow, that's not a CIP project,
that's the first guy who comes in and wants a building permit. I mean the County could take that
approach, but the County's been trying to upgrade these lines, you know, as much as we can.
Obviously, with 700-and-something miles of pipe we can't upgrade it all tomorrow. But that's,
that's right is again take the "low-hanging fruit" approach, help the most people we can, and
there are going to be people who, who aren't helped and are kind of left on their own. That's, 1
think that's the case with all water, sewer, power, all transmission, roads, everything, is that
sometimes the government does the project, sometimes the next developer has to wait or has to
fund it themselves, and I think we see that with all infrastructure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Well, if I was a resident on any of these streets,
I'd be a little upset that there's not enough fire flow to protect my home that caught on fire. You
know, I mean I, I think that's, there's a job that was supposed to...what prompted us to look into
these streets anyways to begin with?
MR. TAYLOR: I think one thing to remember is when the lines were built 30, 40, 50, longer ago,
however many years ago, they met the fire flow requirements. So then later the fire flow
requirements are increased by, usually by, you know, some sort of Council action, and all of a
sudden everyone's house no longer meets current standards as far as there's no longer current
fire flow for that house you built, you know, 30 years ago. So this isn't something that was done
by the Department. It was really a standard that got raised above the current level of
infrastructure, which is really how all standards are raised whether it's building, building codes
or plumbing codes. You know, you have an old code, everybody builds to that, you make a new
code, now nothing anymore is in compliance, and until, you know, the next round comes when
you upgrade, you know, your development, you are not in compliance with the new code. So I
think it's important to remember, again, all infrastructure's this way. Whenever codes are
upgraded, you know, there's a lot of people who are all of a sudden grandfathered essentially and
are kind of stuck sometimes because they can't afford, you know, to, to improve because the
codes have changed. So I think that's...this is something that goes way beyond just the
Department of Water Supply and is a case for all infrastructure and, and all code compliance.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Well, I think that's where, you know, if you're going to
continually grow a certain area and it's going to keep tapping into the water supply or, or, you
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know, whatever it is, now the first people that were there now have to suffer because you got
new improvements supposedly or additional to the development. I mean for me that just doesn't
make sense or, or seems to be fair. And I'm just curious, I'm looking there's a couple projects in
West Maui for Kameeni Place, and I don't have any idea where that is.
MR. CHANG: Oh, that's...Member Cochran, that's the one as you come in to Lower Honoapiilani
Road off...by, past Safeway, it's the first cul-de-sac on the right, the short cul-de-sac.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Past Times? Lower Road you said?
MR. CHANG: Past...what is that, is that Safeway, the corner of Honoapiilani and Lower Honoapiilani
Road?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, it's a Times now.
MR. CHANG: Oh, Times, sorry. It's past that, there's a...the first intersection, there's a short
cul-de-sac over there.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. I think that's Kameeui Place, but anyway.
MR. CHANG: Yeah, I think it is.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? lf not...Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't have a question for the Water Department, but I have one for the
Budget Director or Finance Director -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --if they're going to be around after...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz, please.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, Chair, this can wait until after Water Department is done, or are
we done after...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. There's no more questions for the Water Department, but if you have a
question for Mr. Baz, we'll take Mr. Baz.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you. At the end of this report, the December 31 st report,
at the end of the CIF' rundown it...there's a...the first column is Prior Year
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Encumbrance/Carryover. My question is of the 136.2 million in that column on the...as the
grand total, how much of that is Carryover versus how much is encumbered?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair and Councilmember White, the...by definition, if an item is in this prior year
encumbrances, it, it has been encumbered. I mean it's, it's been contracted or somehow secured
that that, that money has been allocated to be spent and, and encumbered to be spent. So the
answer is all of it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So all of it is encumbered?
MR. BAZ: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: None of it is Carryover?
MR. BAZ: I would have to refer to the Department of Finance to find out why they used the word
"Carryover" in, in this item.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. And then the other question, Chair, is of the available balance of
64.6 million in the last column, how much of that is likely to be encumbered by the end of the,
end of this fiscal year?
MR. BAZ: That would take a very detailed review to be able to get that information back to you. This
report is as of December 31, 2010, all Fiscal Year '10 appropriations which would have been for
the period June...July 1 St through June 30 th of 2010. Of course CIP has six months in addition to
encumber those funds. Any funds that aren't encumbered as of this date, for Fiscal Year '10
appropriations would then expire or lapse or expire. Then so how much of that balance available
is FY '10 monies? We'd have to go back and look at, and then another thing that this Committee
that will be reviewing these and from the Administration level we'll go back and see how much
of those projects are...that, you know, it's 95 percent done and there's either...or 100 percent
done and there's some monies left there to be expended or that's left encumbered. We need to
figure out can it be disencumbered? You know, what, what's the reason why it's still there left?
You know, like I said before, did they go under budget or did the project not get completed for
some reason, we're waiting for some documents to finish up, and then retainage, stuff like that.
Then we can go ahead and either disencumber the funds and then recognize that those funds
would be Carryover/Savings or lapsed bonds.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. The reason I'm asking is that . . . clears throat). . . excuse me,
with the difference in the year end 2010 balance of Carryover changing from the projected
37 million to 109, of that $72 million difference, my recollection is that somewhere roughly in
the neighborhood of $45 million of that was in the CIP projects that weren't done. So I'm
interested in finding out how much of that 136 million is truly Carryover. So if you could have
the Finance Director let us know.
(

MR. BAZ: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: You're, you're saying none of it is, but I'm just...when you see
$45 million worth of projects not getting completed from year to year, I, I'd just like to get a
sense of how to determine how much of these projects are simply year to year? You know,
they're, obviously they're, if they're getting done at some point, that's great, but if there's a
balance that generally gets carried forward or a percentage that gets carried...or carried over,
then I'd like to get a handle on what that amount is.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Thank you. Member White and Mr. Chair...
MR. WHITE: I'm not sure if my question's all that clear, but...
MR. BAZ: We'll discuss, some of...most of that will be discussed during the Fiscal Year '12
presentation in revenues, and as we get into the Carryover/Savings discussion, that was...those
would be very relevant questions and -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: -and we will hope to answer them as clearly as possible for you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions for the Department? Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Just curious, I don't know if this pertains to
what Mr...Councilmember White was trying to address, but I'm just...there's one page that has
almost $1 million of lapsed funds. So I'm not sure if lapsed also means Carryover or I mean is
there a running total on how many lapsed dollars there are? And, and are they going to be
reallocated or can they be used elsewhere?
MR. BAZ: Sure. Well, Member Cochran, there's many definitions for lapsed and how it can be lapsed.
There are projects that did not get executed at all, and so those projects then...funding for those
projects if they were bond funds would just...the appropriation would disappear and it wouldn't
be...have gone through. We won't go out for bond. If it's projects that were executed and then
the monies lapsed and we had gone out to bond, then it becomes lapsed bond. If they're
cash-funded projects out of either the General Fund or Highway Fund or some of the water
special funds then that, that cash would become Carryover/Savings for the next fiscal year. So -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. There's...
MR. BAZ: --you'd have to pull out...and if you're looking at a specific project or a specific item we
could go and follow that step by step to describe to you what exactly happens to that specific
fund.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. I don't know exactly but there's some that where the project
was just cancelled. You know 350,000, you know, it's gonna lapse 'cause they just...you just -MR. BAZ: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --decided not to do it anymore?
MR. BAZ: So it's mostly... excuse me, mostly due to the funding source and whether or not a contract
was executed for it and we actually started the project or not. So like I said, if there's any
specific projects either, you know, you can contact me directly and I can go over, through that
with you or during the FY '12 deliberation process, if you guys have questions about that, we
can discuss those.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And we'll start the budget deliberations and we'll receive
information from the Finance Department on Wednesday, so those questions can be answered at
that particular meeting. Any more questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can we get from either Mr. Baz or maybe if Mr. Agsalog can assist him?
You know, one of the things that bothers us at the legislative side is last-minute encumbrances of
funds on contracts and then the contract goes nowhere, the opposite of what Mr. Goode said. He
plans to go within...once you encumber, 90 days notice to proceed. We've seen the opposite,
department's not wishing to lose the funding, gets a hastily executed agreement to encumber the
funds, and then we wait forever for a project to go nowhere, but they've locked up the money so
that we cannot use it for any other purpose. I think we should get one sense on what is out there,
if any, and then maybe find a way to sunset those appropriations and reprogram it to where we
need to place those monies, Mr. Pontanilla. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that comment. I think I had had some conversation in regards
to putting all the capital improvement dollars in one pot and, and all departments, you know,
based on your priorities, you guys...I hate to use the word "fight", but whichever project is more
important for the County, then somebody gotta make the determination and you come back to the
Council for, ask for appropriation. That way you don't lapse anything and for sure if your
project is the most highest priority then, you know, you more than likely will get your funding
rather than encumbering, lapsing, and, and nothing is being done for years. We all know that. In
fact, four of us knows that really well or maybe five, and, and the fairly new ones, you know,
now you coming to see what we always talk about old projects. You know, and I'm glad to hear
Mr. Baz and, and his committee's gonna be taking a look at projects dating back from 1986,
trying to get it, you know, either closed so that we can recognize those dollars. So I look forward
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to some of the savings coming from your review in regards to the projects that have been here for
decades. So with that, any more discussion?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Last one, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Since it's not part of the normal budget review process, I will ask though if
you would make a component or time in your, your schedule, because I would like to get a
complete assessment of every single special fund we have--what are the balances?--and for us to
decide whether or not we will continue to utilize those special funds or make appropriate
adjustments, Chairman. But normally if we don't ask, we'll never see it, we'll never see it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Staff, did we? Not yet?
MR. KANESHINA: Yeah. We...if, if you decide, if the Committee decides we can, we can definitely
draft a letter to the Budget Department to provide those figures.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh. Please. Thank you. Any more questions or discussions? If not,
Members, Chair is going to defer both BF-4 and BF-5. We may utilize those two reports during
the upcoming budget.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If there's no more discussion or, or questions, thank you very much for being
here late. I want to thank Administration, the Water Supply...or Water Department, Mr. Baz,
Ms. Heely, and, Staff, thank you very much. The Budget meeting for March 28 th , 2011 is now
adjourned. ... (gavel).. .
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